
 

City Council Agenda 1 October 25, 2016 
 

MISSIO� VIEJO AGE�DA 
City Council, Community Development Financing Authority, 
Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency,  

Housing Authority, and Library Board of Trustees* 
 October 25, 2016, at 5:00 PM (Closed Session Business) 

October 25, 2016, at 6:00 PM (General Business) 
 
City Hall, 200 Civic Center, Mission Viejo, California, 92691           City Council Chamber 
 
CALL TO ORDER—CITY COU�CIL, COMMU�ITY DEVELOPME�T FI�A�CI�G 
AUTHORITY, SUCCESSOR AGE�CY OF THE COMMU�ITY DEVELOPME�T AGE�CY, 
HOUSI�G AUTHORITY, A�D LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
 
*�ote: All Board and Agency memberships are reflected in the title “Council Member.” 
 
ROLL CALL: Council Member Raths 
   Council Member Sachs 
   Council Member Schlicht 
   Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum 
    Mayor Ury 
 
 
CLOSED SESSIO� 
 
REPORT OF CLOSED SESSIO� 
 
I�VOCATIO�: Council Member Sachs 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIA�CE: Mayor Ury 
 
PRESE�TATIO�S 
 
P1. Recognize City Volunteers for Their 1,000 Hours of Service 
 

Recommended Action: Present certificates of appreciation.  
 
PUBLIC COMME�TS 
 
Persons wishing to address the Council on City business that is not listed on the Agenda may do so 
at this time.  "Public Comment" forms are available at the entrance to the Council Chamber.  Each 
Speaker may be allotted three minutes.  
 
Those wishing to address the Council on any item that is listed on the Agenda should submit to the 
City Clerk a "Request to Speak"  or "Written Comments" form before the Mayor announces that 
agenda item.  The Mayor will call speakers during consideration of each item. 

 
CO�SE�T CALE�DAR 



 

City Council Agenda 2 October 25, 2016 
 

 
1. Waive Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the reading by title of all ordinances and resolutions and 
declare that said titles which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have been 
read by title and further reading waived. 

 
2. City Council Minutes 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the Minutes for the regular City Council meeting of 
October 12, 2016, as presented or as amended. 

 
3. Check Register Dated September 30, 2016 in the Amount of $1,175,020.67 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify the accompanying check register. 
 
4. Check Register Dated October 7, 2016 in the Amount of $1,748,603.08 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify the accompanying check register. 
 
5. Check Register Dated October 14, 2016 in the Amount of $858,525.91 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify the accompanying check register. 
 
6. City Treasurer’s Monthly Report for August 2016 
 

Recommended Action: Receive and file. 
 
7. Mission Viejo Community Development Financing Authority (MVCDFA) Treasurer’s 

Monthly Report for August 2016 
 

Recommended Action: Receive and file. 
 
8. Mission Viejo Housing Authority (MVHA) Treasurer’s Monthly Report for August 

2016 
 

Recommended Action: Receive and file. 
 
9. Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency Treasurer’s Monthly 

Report for August 2016 
 

Recommended Action: Receive and file. 
 
10. Road Closure Request from Trabuco Hills High School for a 5K Run 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the Special Events Permit submitted by Trabuco Hills 
High School authorizing the closure of Mustang Run between Los Alisos and Aguilar and a 
partial closure on Empanada on Saturday, June 10, 2017. 



 

City Council Agenda 3 October 25, 2016 
 

 
11. Renewal of Letter of Credit Related to Mission Viejo Community Development 

Financing Authority (MVCDFA) Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (Mission 
Viejo Mall Improvement Project), 1999 Series A 

 
Recommended Action: Authorize the Executive Director to execute the Letter of Credit 
Renewal for a Two Year Term at a fee of 1.25%  

 
12. Ordinances to Ensure Prohibition of all Marijuana Uses in Light of the Potential 

Passage of Proposition 64 
 

Recommended Action: (1) Adopt Ordinance 16-315 a Non-Urgency Ordinance Adding 
Chapter 11.23B to Prohibit Recreational Marijuana Uses in the City to the Fullest Extent 
Allowed by State Law; and (2) adopt Ordinance 16-316 a Non-Urgency Ordinance 
Replacing Chapter 11.23 with Chapter 11.23A to Prohibit Medical Marijuana Uses in the 
City to the Fullest Extent Allowed by State Law. 

 
ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CO�SE�T CALE�DAR 
 
PUBLIC HEARI�GS 
 
13. MV Shuttle-ADA Complementary Paratransit Plan 
 

Recommended Action: Adopt the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Complementary 
Paratransit Plan associated with the City’s fixed route local transit service (MV Shuttle). 

 
OLD BUSI�ESS 
 
14. Alicia Parkway Slope Renovation 
 

Recommended Action: (1) Approve Contract Amendment #17 in the amount of $10,000 to 
West Coast Arborist for additional trimming and selected removal of trees along Alicia 
Parkway in the next phase of slopes renovations; (2) approve  Contract Amendment #3 in 
the amount of $100,000 to WM Vandergeest Landscape Care Inc., along Alicia Parkway in 
the next phase of slope renovations; (3) approve Contract Amendment #3 in the amount of 
$110,000 to AC Landscape for irrigation retrofits and controller installation and (4) adopt 
Resolution 16-XX  Amending the Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Operating Budget To Appropriate 
General Fund Reserves For Slope Renovations Along Alicia Parkway. 

 
MAYOR’S, COMMISSIO�, COMMITTEE REPORTS A�D ACTIO�S 
 
15. Foothill/Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency Report 
 

Recommended Action: Receive report.  
 
16. San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor Agency Report 
 

Recommended Action: Receive report. 



 

City Council Agenda 4 October 25, 2016 
 

 
17. Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) 
 

Recommended Action: Receive report.  
 
18. Update On CUSD Bond Measure Issue 
 

Recommended Action: Receive report.  
 
STAFF REPORTS 
 
COU�CIL MEMBER COMME�TS A�D ACTIO�S 
 
19. Council Member Reports of Events and Activities Attended 
 

Recommended Action: Receive reports.  
 
Council Member Raths 
 
Council Member Sachs 
 
Council Member Schlicht 
 
20. Civic Core Area Vision Plan Process:  Concerns as to Process and Scope of Land-Use 

Planning and Regulations 
 

Recommended Action: Reject The Kosmont Opportunity Sites until the council answers 
policy questions on Mixed-Use Housing, Zoning Incentives, Financial Incentives and 
CEQA Process Review  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum 
 
Mayor Ury 



 

City Council Agenda 5 October 25, 2016 
 

 
 
Adjournment to Tuesday, �ovember 8, 2016, at 5:00 PM 
 
 
At the hour of 9:30 p.m., the City Council will review the remaining agenda items and make a 
decision regarding the items to be considered before the 11:00 p.m. adjournment and the items to 
be continued to the next meeting. 
 
 

�OTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

Supplemental material received after the posting of the Agenda 
 
Any supplemental writings or documents distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any 
item on this Agenda, after the posting of the Agenda, will be available for public review in the City 
Clerk’s Office located at 200 Civic Center, Mission Viejo, California, during normal business hours.  In 
addition, such writings or documents will be made available on the City’s web site at 
http://cityofmissionviejo.org/ and will be available for public review at the respective meeting. 
  
If you have any questions regarding any item of business on the Agenda for this meeting, please contact 
City Clerk’s Office staff at (949) 470-3052 or by email – cityclerk@cityofmissionviejo.org. 

 



 



 

City Council Minutes          1                   October 12, 2016 
 

 

 

 

MISSION VIEJO MINUTES 
City Council, Community Development Financing Authority, 

Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency, 

Housing Authority, and Library Board of Trustees* 
 

October 12, 2016 

 

A Regular Meeting of the City Council, the Community Development Financing Authority, the 

Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency, the Housing Authority, and the 

Library Board of Trustees of the City of Mission Viejo, California, was called to order by Mayor 

Ury at 5:01 p.m., on October 12, 2016, at 200 Civic Center, Mission Viejo, California.  

A complete copy of the agenda for the meeting containing all items as shown herein was posted 

by 5:00 p.m. on October 7, 2016, on the outdoor bulletin board at City Hall. Copies were also 

posted at the Montanoso Recreation and Fitness Center, 25800 Montanoso Drive, and the Norman 

P. Murray Community and Senior Center, 24932 Veterans Way.  

*All Board and Agency memberships are reflected in the title "Council Member." 

Present:  Council Member Raths   

Council Member Sachs (arrived at 6:57 p.m.) 

Council Member Schlicht  

Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum    

  

Absent:  Mayor Ury  

  

Staff Present:  Dennis Wilberg, City Manager   

William P. Curley III, City Attorney   

Keith Rattay, Assistant City Manager/Director of Public Services  

Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services   

Karen Hamman, City Clerk  

   

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION AND RECONVENE 

 

At the hour of 5:01 p.m., Mayor Ury declared a recess.  The City Council reconvened at 6:02 p.m. 

with four City Council Members present.  Council Member Sachs arrived at 6:57 p.m. 

   

CLOSED SESSION  

 

CS1.  Public Employee Performance Evaluation of the Incumbent for the Position of City 

Attorney Pursuant to Government Code Sections 54957 and 54957.6  
 

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          2                   October 12, 2016 
 

 

 

REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION  
 

City Manager Wilberg announced that there was no reportable action from Closed Session. 

 

INVOCATION: Council Member Schlicht  

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Council Member Raths  

 

PRESENTATIONS  
 

P1.  Mission Viejo Hometown Settlers Recognition  
 

 Mission Viejo Heritage Committee Members Bob Breton and Art Villalobos, along with 

Mayor Ury, recognized the Golden Anniversary of Mission Viejo’s first homeowners. 

 

P2.  Proclaim October 16 through October 22, 2016 To Be "Friends of Libraries Week"  
 
 Mayor Ury presented the proclamation to Genesis Hansen, Director of Library Services. 

 

P3.  Proclaim October 9 through 16, 2016 To Be "Fire Prevention Week"  
 

 Mayor Ury presented the proclamation to Orange County Fire Authority Battalion Chief, 

Steve Pardi. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

Gail Reavis, M.V.: suggested that residents visit www.transparentcalifornia.com to view the 

salaries of California's elected officials, including the Mission Viejo City Council Members.  

 

Khatra Molina, Mission Viejo Police Services: announced that the 28th annual Walk Against 

Drugs and Community Fair will be held on Saturday, October 15, 2016, beginning at 8:00 a.m. at 

Mission Viejo High School. She recommended that participants arrive early to get parking and 

a free event-themed t-shirt.   

 

Trish Kelley, M.V.: thanked the Mission Viejo Rotary Club for hosting a Candidate Forum for all 

five City Council candidates.  She noted that she is running for City Council and she recommended 

that voters look in the sample ballot or on the candidate websites to learn more about each 

one.  Mrs. Kelley expressed her dismay that campaign signs are being stolen right out of residents’ 

front yards.  

 

Brian Goodell, M.V.: announced that he is running for Mission Viejo City Council.  He said that 

he too enjoyed the Rotary Candidate Forum and he discussed topics that interest him, including 

the Vision Plan for the community's core, overseeing city facilities and programs, and emergency 

preparedness. 

 

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          3                   October 12, 2016 
 

 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

Item 4 was removed from the Consent Calendar for separate consideration. 

 

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum, seconded by Council Member Raths, to approve the 

Consent Calendar as outlined below. 

  

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote:  

 

AYES: Bucknum, Raths, Schlicht, and Ury 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: Sachs 

   

1.  Waive Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions  
 

 
Approved the reading by title of all ordinances and resolutions and declared that said titles 

which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have been read by title and further 

reading waived.  

 

2.  City Council Minutes  
 

 Approved the Minutes for the regular City Council meeting of September 27, 2016, as 

presented.  

 

3.  Check Register Dated September 16, 2016 in the Amount of $762,645.60  
 
 Ratified the accompanying check register. 

 

5.  Quarterly Check Register Report - Fourth Quarter of FY 2015-16  
 
 Received and filed. 

 

6.  Year-End Financial Report for the City of Mission Viejo for the Twelve Months 

Ended June 30, 2016  
 
 Received and filed.  

 

7.  Semi-Annual Financial Report for the Community Development Financing Authority 

- For the Year Ended June 30, 2016  
 
 Received and filed.  

 

8.  Renewal of Library Automated System Software and Hardware Support Agreement  
 

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          4                   October 12, 2016 
 

 

 

 
Approved issuance of a purchase order for year 5 of 5-year agreement in the amount of 

$67,894.06 for maintenance and support of the Library Automated Systems (ALS) 

Software and Hardware Agreement with SirsiDynix, Inc. 

 

9.  Replacement of Network Security Systems (Firewalls)  
 

 
Approved entering into agreement and issuance of a purchase order in the amount of 

$263,962.29 to Catalyst Systems for purchase of equipment and professional services for 

implementation of network security systems (firewalls). 

 

STAFF REPORTS  
 

13.  Marguerite Aquatics Complex Renovation Construction Contract CIP 14325  
 

 

Keith Rattay, Assistant City Manager/Director of Public Services, presented the staff 

report. 

Council Member Sachs arrived at 6:57 p.m.  

 

Kimberly Barnes, Mission Viejo Nadadores Foundation Board Member and President of 

Nadadores Dive Team: thanked all of those who stood up both behind the scenes and 

leading the pack to make the renovation of the Marguerite Aquatics Complex possible.  

She presented the City with a check in the amount of $170,749.80 which represents 30 

months of the Nadadores Foundation’s contractual payments. 

Coach Mark Schubert, Seal Beach: expressed his support for the renovation of the 

Marguerite Aquatics Complex. 

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum, seconded by Mayor Ury, to (1) award a 

contract to Construct 1 One, Corp., (A16-35) and issue a purchase order in an amount not 

to exceed $8,568,731.00; (2) adopt Resolution 16-49 amending the Budget for CIP 14325 

in an amount of $2,282,051.00; (3) approve change order #1 to Griffin Structures in an 

amount not to exceed $299,900.00; (4) approve change order #2 to Aquatic Design Group 

in an amount not to exceed $144,650.00; (5) issue a purchase order to GMU Geotechnical 

in an amount not to exceed $55,560.00; and (6) award a contract to Tuff Shed Inc. (A16-

50) and issued a purchase order in an amount not to exceed $158,391.00. 

  

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote:   

 

AYES: Bucknum, Raths, Sachs, Schlicht, and Ury 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 
 

   

  

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          5                   October 12, 2016 
 

 

 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

4.  Check Register Dated September 23, 2016 in the Amount of $2,792,007.03  
 

 

Council Member Schlicht asked about a payment made to Eric Winter for storm channel 

drone footage. 

City Manager Wilberg responded that staff will get back to the City Council with an 

explanation for the expenditure. 

Motion made by Council Member Schlicht, seconded by Mayor Ury, to ratify the 

accompanying check register. 

 

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote:   

 

AYES: Bucknum, Raths, Sachs, Schlicht, and Ury 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 
 

 

STAFF REPORTS (Continued)  
 

15.  Adoption of two (2) urgency ordinances to prohibit all marijuana uses in light of the 

potential passage of Proposition 64; Introduction for first reading of two (2) 

corresponding non-urgency ordinances to ensure prohibition of all marijuana uses in 

light of the potential passage of Proposition 64.  
 

 

City Attorney Bill Curley presented the staff report.  

 

Anna T. Boyce, M.V.: expressed her opposition to Proposition 64. She stated that she is in 

favor of the use of marijuana for medical purposes but she does not support recreational 

use. 

Motion made by Mayor Ury, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum, to (1) adopt Urgency 

Ordinance 16-313 Adding Chapter 11.23B to Prohibit Recreational Marijuana Uses in the 

City to the Fullest Extent Allowed by State Law; (2) adopt Urgency Ordinance 16-314 

Replacing Chapter 11.23 with Chapter 11.23A to Prohibit Medical Marijuana Uses in the 

City to the Fullest Extent Allowed by State Law; (3) introduce Ordinance 16-315 a Non-

Urgency Ordinance Adding Chapter 11.23B to Prohibit Recreational Marijuana Uses in 

the City to the Fullest Extent Allowed by State Law; and (4) introduce Ordinance 16-316 

a Non-Urgency Ordinance Replacing Chapter 11.23 with Chapter 11.23A to Prohibit 

Medical Marijuana Uses in the City to the Fullest Extent Allowed by State Law. 

  

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote:  

 

 

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          6                   October 12, 2016 
 

 

 

AYES: Bucknum, Raths, Sachs, Schlicht, and Ury 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 
 

   

MAYOR’S, COMMISSION, COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ACTIONS  
 

10.  Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA)  
 
 Mayor Ury announced that he was unable to attend the recent meeting of the OCTA Board. 

 

11.  Update on CUSD Bond Measure Issue  
 
 There was no report. 

 

STAFF REPORTS (Continued)  
 

12.  Close out of FY 2015/16 and FY 2016/17 Budget Adjustments for Certain Revenue 

and Expenditure Accounts and Appropriated Reserves  
 

 

City Manager Wilberg summarized the budget adjustments. Director of Administrative 

Services Cheryl Dyas presented the staff report and answered the City Council Member's 

questions. 

Motion made by Mayor Ury, seconded by Council Member Sachs, to (1) adopt Resolution 

16-47 Amending the FY 2015/16 City Budget for Year-End Close Out Adjustments in 

Certain Accounts and Funds; and (2) adopt Resolution 16-48 Amending the FY 2016/17 

City Budget; and (3) direct staff to return at the next Council Meeting with a budget for 

additional slope repairs along Alicia Parkway between Marguerite and Via Aurora. 

  

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote:  

 

AYES: Bucknum, Raths, Sachs, Schlicht, and Ury 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 
 

   

14.  Minor Revision to Map Exhibit for the Placement of Temporary Signs in the Public 

Right-of-Way at Arterial Intersections  
 

 

City Manager Wilberg presented the staff report. 

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum, seconded by Council Member Sachs, to 

approve minor revision to the map exhibit for the placement of temporary signs in the 

public right-of-way at arterial intersections.  The revisions will prohibit signs at the corner 

Marguerite Parkway and La Paz Road where the City's message board/marquee is located 

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          7                   October 12, 2016 
 

 

 

and at the corner of Marguerite Parkway and Alicia Parkway in front of the Presbyterian 

Church of the Master. 

  

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote:  

 

AYES: Bucknum, Raths, Sachs, Schlicht, and Ury 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 
 

   

COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS AND ACTIONS  
 

16.  Council Member Reports of Events and Activities Attended  
 

 
By consensus, the City Council Members acknowledged their event and activities 

calendars as presented in the report and agreed to provide any changes to the City Clerk 

for the public record. 

 

Council Member Raths  
 

No comments. 

 

Council Member Sachs  
 

Council Member Sachs said that while celebrating Yom Kippur at his Temple today, he learned 

that the Capistrano Unified School District does not allow Jewish students to have the holidays 

off.  He noted that he will be working to try and get the school district to recognize Rosh Hashana 

and Yom Kippur and provide accommodations for Jews to take those holidays off. 

 

Council Member Schlicht  
 

17.  Support Congressman Darrell Issa’s draft federal legislation to help Sober Living 

Homes function better for the community, those in recovery, and all parties involved  
 

 

Council Member Schlicht read her agenda report. 

Motion made by Council Member Schlicht to direct staff to prepare a Letter in support of 

Congressman Darrell Issa's legislation to amend the Fair Housing Act to help states and 

cities regulate Sober Living Homes.  The motion died for lack of a second. 

  

18.  Civic Core Area Vision Plan Process: Concerns as to Process and Scope of Land-Use 

Planning and Regulations  
 
 Council Member Schlicht presented her agenda report. 

  

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          8                   October 12, 2016 
 

 

 

Council Member Schlicht reminded her colleagues that on June 6, 2011, she added an item to the 

agenda recommending that at the conclusion of the 2012 summer Olympics games the City should 

begin renovation on the Marguerite swim complex.  The motion passed with a 5-0 vote. She noted 

that tax dollars will be expended on the project and she is concerned that it will take money away 

from other projects such as slope upgrades. Council Member Schlicht stated that there is a 

difference between a public asset that families can use and a private club with top dollar 

improvements funded by tax dollars.  She said that the Marguerite Aquatics Center is a valuable 

city asset but it is not open to the public. She further stated that although the Mission Viejo 

Company built the community and created a wonderful master plan, it is the residents who make 

the City unique and special.  In closing, Council Member Schlicht shared a Yiddish Proverb in 

celebration of Yom Kippur: "A half-truth is a full lie." 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum  
 

Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum discussed her participation in the Southern California Housing Summit 

where a panel of experts addressed the topic of cities helping developers and businesses 

prosper.  She said that one of the solutions that the panel discussed was to conduct a vision plan.  

While economic development and housing are separate topics, the Housing Summit panel talked 

about cities doing something great that individual businesses cannot do. She said cities can conduct 

research and study what residents want but small business cannot do that. Mayor Pro Tem 

Bucknum described that the City can help businesses thrive by gathering input from residents 

without prejudicing them and seeking feedback through a very specific process.  She stated that it 

was a great opportunity to be a speaker at a recent Southern California Association of Governments 

(SCAG) meeting and she thanked staff for providing information for her to share on the positive 

things that are being done within the region.  She said it was also an honor to be able to represent 

Mission Viejo at the Housing Summit too. Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum discussed the presentation 

earlier in the evening for the 50th anniversary of the first homebuyers and she said that similarly, 

on Friday night, October 14, Mission Viejo High School will have its homecoming and all of the 

classes from the past 50 years will be invited to the football field for recognition. She also reminded 

residents that the Walk Against Drugs is Saturday, October 15, 2016, and she said she would love 

to see the whole community walking up La Paz Road together in red shirts, taking a stand against 

drugs. In closing, Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum thanked her colleagues for the great vote tonight on 

the renovation of the aquatics complex. 

 

Mayor Ury  
 

Mayor Ury thanked the Santa Margarita Water District, Lake Mission Viejo Association, and their 

boards and staff for putting together a great celebration for the Advanced Purified Water (APW) 

plant at the lake.  Frances Spivy-Weber from the State Water Resources Control Board came to 

the event and shared her insight on the project for the first swimming lake in the State to be filled 

with APW.  He expressed his appreciation to staff for making sure the funding for the project came 

together very quickly.  Mayor Ury reminded residents that the 28th annual Walk Against Drugs 

will be held on Saturday, October 15. 

 

  

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          9                   October 12, 2016 
 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT  
 

At the hour of 8:20 p.m., with no further business to come before the City Council at this session, 

Mayor Ury adjourned the meeting to Tuesday, October 25, 2017, at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

______________________________________________  

Karen Hamman, City Clerk  

  

Approved at the meeting of October 25, 2016 

 

 

 

Item#2.              



Item#2.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

10/25/2016 

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Check Register dated September 30, 2016 in the amount of $1,175,020.67 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Ratify the accompanying check register. 
  
Executive Summary 

Government Code sections 37208(b) and 37209 provide that accounts payable warrants or checks drawn in 
payment of demands certified or approved by the finance director as conforming to a budget approved by 
ordinance or resolution of the legislative body need not be audited by the legislative body prior to payment.  
City Council Policy #300-4 authorizes the Director of Administrative Services to audit the demands prior to 
payment and calls for such checks to be issued on a weekly basis and the check register for each of the weekly 
pay cycles to be submitted to the City Council for ratification at the next regular Council meeting.   
 
The following checks have been certified to be in accordance with the City’s approved budget. The checks 
have been issued and the check register is presented to the City Council for ratification. 
 
In addition, Government Code section 37208(a) provides that payroll warrants or checks need not be audited 
by the legislative body prior to payment.  Payrolls shall be presented to the legislative body for ratification and 
approval at the first meeting after delivery of the payroll warrants or checks.  The sum total of any payroll 
checks issued within the week prior to the date of the check register is also noted on the accompanying check 
register. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: YES (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers. NO Optg. NO Cap. NO   -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

October 22, 1990 – Approved Council policy 300-4  
February 2, 2004 – Approved the revision of Council policy 300-4 
   
Attachments 

Exhibit 
 

 
 

Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



 



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

10/25/2016 

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Check Register dated October 7, 2016 in the amount of $1,748,603.08 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Ratify the accompanying check register. 
  
Executive Summary 

Government Code sections 37208(b) and 37209 provide that accounts payable warrants or checks drawn in 
payment of demands certified or approved by the finance director as conforming to a budget approved by 
ordinance or resolution of the legislative body need not be audited by the legislative body prior to payment.  
City Council Policy #300-4 authorizes the Director of Administrative Services to audit the demands prior to 
payment and calls for such checks to be issued on a weekly basis and the check register for each of the weekly 
pay cycles to be submitted to the City Council for ratification at the next regular Council meeting.   
 
The following checks have been certified to be in accordance with the City’s approved budget. The checks 
have been issued and the check register is presented to the City Council for ratification. 
 
In addition, Government Code section 37208(a) provides that payroll warrants or checks need not be audited 
by the legislative body prior to payment.  Payrolls shall be presented to the legislative body for ratification and 
approval at the first meeting after delivery of the payroll warrants or checks.  The sum total of any payroll 
checks issued within the week prior to the date of the check register is also noted on the accompanying check 
register. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: YES (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers. NO Optg. NO Cap. NO   -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

October 22, 1990 – Approved Council policy 300-4  
February 2, 2004 – Approved the revision of Council policy 300-4 
   
Attachments 

Exhibit 
 

 
 

Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

10/25/2016 

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Check Register dated October 14, 2016 in the amount of $858,525.91 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Ratify the accompanying check register. 
  
Executive Summary 

Government Code sections 37208(b) and 37209 provide that accounts payable warrants or checks drawn in 
payment of demands certified or approved by the finance director as conforming to a budget approved by 
ordinance or resolution of the legislative body need not be audited by the legislative body prior to payment.  
City Council Policy #300-4 authorizes the Director of Administrative Services to audit the demands prior to 
payment and calls for such checks to be issued on a weekly basis and the check register for each of the weekly 
pay cycles to be submitted to the City Council for ratification at the next regular Council meeting.   
 
The following checks have been certified to be in accordance with the City’s approved budget. The checks 
have been issued and the check register is presented to the City Council for ratification. 
 
In addition, Government Code section 37208(a) provides that payroll warrants or checks need not be audited 
by the legislative body prior to payment.  Payrolls shall be presented to the legislative body for ratification and 
approval at the first meeting after delivery of the payroll warrants or checks.  The sum total of any payroll 
checks issued within the week prior to the date of the check register is also noted on the accompanying check 
register. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: YES (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers. NO Optg. NO Cap. NO   -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

October 22, 1990 – Approved Council policy 300-4  
February 2, 2004 – Approved the revision of Council policy 300-4 
   
Attachments 

Exhibit 
 

 
 

Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

10/25/2016 

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

City Treasurer’s Monthly Report for August 2016 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Receive and file. 
  
Executive Summary 

A monthly report from the City Treasurer regarding receipts, disbursements and fund balances is required by 
Government Code Section 41004.  The accompanying report for August meets this Government Code 
requirement, as well as the requirements of other sections of the Government Code and the City’s Investment 
Policy.  This report excludes the investment portfolio of the Successor Agency of the Community 
Development Agency, the Housing Authority and the Community Development Financing Authority. 
 
The Government Code requires delivery to the City Council of the Treasurer’s report within 30 days after the 
close of the reporting period.  This item will be acted upon by the City at the first meeting possible after 
delivery to the Council.  In this case, the report is scheduled for the October 25, 2016 meeting. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

      
   
Attachments 

Exhibits – City’s Treasurer’s Report for August  2016; City Summary Report for August  2016; Graph 
Exhibit; City Reconciliation of Cash Disbursements for August  2016; Investment Transactions for August  
2016; Investment Detail for August  2016 
 

 
 

Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

10/25/2016 

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Mission Viejo Community Development Financing Authority (MVCDFA) Treasurer’s Monthly Report for 
August 2016 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Receive and file. 
  
Executive Summary 

A monthly report from the Authority Treasurer regarding receipts, disbursements and fund balances is required 
by Government Code Section 41004.  The accompanying report for August meets this Government Code 
requirement, as well as the requirements of other sections of the Government Code. 
 
The Government Code requires delivery to the Authority Board of the Treasurer’s report within 30 days after 
the close of the reporting period.  This item will be acted upon by the Authority at the first meeting possible 
after delivery to the Authority Board.  In this case, the report is scheduled for the October 25, 2016 meeting. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

      
   
Attachments 

Exhibits – CDFA Treasurer’s Monthly Report for August 2016; CDFA Reconciliation of Cash Disbursements 
for August 2016; CDFA Investments Transactions Summary for August 2016; CDFA Investment Detail for 
August 2016 
 

 
 

Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



 



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

10/25/2016 

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Mission Viejo Housing Authority (MVHA) Treasurer’s Monthly Report for August 2016 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Receive and file. 
  
Executive Summary 

A monthly report from the Authority Treasurer regarding receipts, disbursements and fund balances is required 
by Government Code Section 41004.  The accompanying report for August meets this Government Code 
requirement. 
 
The Government Code requires delivery to the Authority Board of the Treasurer’s report within 30 days after 
the close of the reporting period.  This item will be acted upon by the Authority at the first meeting possible 
after delivery to the Authority Board.  In this case, the report is scheduled for the October 25, 2016 meeting. 
This report includes the activity of the former CDA Housing Fund. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

      
   
Attachments 

Exhibits - MVHA Treasurer’s Report for August 2016; MVHA Reconciliation of Cash Disbursements for 
August 2016; MVHA Investment Transactions for August 2016; MVHA Investment Detail for August 2016 
 

 
 

Item#8.              



Item#8.              



Item#8.              



Item#8.              



Item#8.              



 



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

10/25/2016 

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency Treasurer’s Monthly Report for August 2016 
 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Receive and file. 
  
Executive Summary 

A monthly report from the Agency Treasurer regarding receipts, disbursements and fund balances is required 
by Government Code Section 41004.  The accompanying report for August meets this Government Code 
requirement, as well as the requirements of other sections of the Government Code and the Agency’s 
Investment Policy. 
 
The Government Code requires delivery to the Agency Board of the Treasurer’s report within 30 days after the 
close of the reporting period.  This item will be acted upon by the Agency at the first meeting possible after 
delivery to the Agency Board.  In this case, the report is scheduled for the October 25, 2016 meeting. This 
report excludes the activity of the former CDA Housing Fund. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

      
   
Attachments 

Exhibits - SACDA Treasurer’s Report for August 2016; SACDA Reconciliation of Cash Disbursements for 
August 2016 
 

 
 

Item#9.              



Item#9.              



Item#9.              



 



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

10/25/2016 

Prepared By: Mark Chagnon, Director of Public Works 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services/City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Road Closure Request from Trabuco Hills High School for a 5K Run 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Approve the Special Events Permit submitted by Trabuco Hills High School authorizing the closure of Mustang 
Run between Los Alisos and Aguilar and a partial closure on Empanada on Saturday, June 10, 2017. 
  
Executive Summary 

This event was previously approved by the City Council on June 28, 2016 to be held on October 29, 2016.  
However, Trabuco Hills High School ultimately determined that holding the event later in the school year would 
be preferrable and is requesting approval of a new date Saturday, June 10, 2017.  The time of the event would 
remain from 7:00 a.m. to 9:30 a.m.  Pertinent event information from the previous staff report is provided below. 
 
The event is being planned as a fundraiser to benefit the school's athletic program including facilities on campus 
that athletes use for training. 
 
The school staff developed a route that will allow the majority of the run to occur on campus, city sidewalks, and 
along the Wilderness Glen trail system; however, they need to use Mustang Run to connect runners with sidewalks 
and the trail system.  In addition, this course will require intermittent closures along Empanada between Entidad 
and Valia throughout the duration of the run to allow runners to cross Empanada to reconnect with the trail system.  
 
The Sheriff’s Department will provide an on-duty officer to provide traffic control at Empanada and Explorers to 
man the closures on Mustang Run.  This will be at no additional cost to the City.  
 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the request for these road closures provided the conditions of 
approval in Exhibit A are met.  As staff works with the race coordinators, additional conditions may be required. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 
Prog/Fund #      Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP #       Fund #      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

6-28-16  Approval of Event for 10-29-16 
  
Attachments 

Exhibit A [Conditions of Approval] 
Exhibit B [Map] 
 

 

Item#10.              



EXHIBIT A 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

TRABUCO HILLS HIGH SCHOOL 5K RUN 
SATURDAY, JUNE 10, 2017 

 
 
1. Traffic Control 
 Mustang Run will be closed between Los Alisos Boulevard and Aguilar from 6:00 a.m. to 

11:00 a.m., on Saturday, June 10, 2017.  Intermittent closures along Empanada 
between Entidad and Valia will also occur throughout the duration of the event. Trabuco 
Hills High School shall be responsible for providing the equipment, placement, and 
maintenance of all traffic controls for the entire duration of the closure.  A professional 
contractor is required.  A traffic control plan detailing the signs, barricades, and 
delineators shall be submitted to the City at least ten (10) business days before the 
event for approval and shall be based on the current Work Area Traffic Control 
Handbook (WATCH) and Caltrans Manual of Uniform Traffic Control (MUTCD). 

 
2. Emergency Preparedness 
 The applicant will notify the Orange County Fire Authority and will develop a plan to 

allow emergency vehicle access. 
 
3. Clean Up 
 The applicant will be responsible for providing clean up of any trash and debris that 

accumulates along this portion of Mustang Run. 
 
4. Resident Notification 

The applicant will notify the residents through the distribution of flyers on the adjacent 
streets of the closure fourteen (14) days and again seven (7) days prior to the closing.  
At a minimum, all residents between Aguilar and Vista del Lago shall receive a 
notification about the closure. 

 
5. Insurance 
 The applicant will provide a Certificate of Insurance in the amount of $1 million naming 

the City of Mission Viejo, its employees, and agents as additionally insured.  In addition, 
a separate Certificate of Insurance in the amount of $1 million naming the Orange 
County Sheriff's Department, its officers, and agents will also be required.   

 
6. Indemnification 

The applicant agrees to and shall defend, indemnify, protect and hold harmless the City, 
its elective and appointive boards, officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers 
from and against any and all claims, demands, losses, defense costs, fines, penalties, 
expenses, causes of action and judgments at law or in equity, or liability of any kind or 
nature which the City, its elective and appointive boards, officers, officials, employees, 
agents and volunteers may sustain or incur or which may be imposed upon them for 
injury to or death of persons, or damage to property arising out of applicant’s negligent 
or wrongful act or omission under the terms of this permit excepting only liability arising 
out of the sole negligence of the City. 

 
  

Item#10.              



EXHIBIT A 

7. Traffic Management Plan 
 The applicant shall provide a proposed circulation and parking management plan as it 

relates to the participants, spectators, and any other vehicles associated with this event.  
It shall show how traffic will be permitted to access the school and where parking will 
occur on-site.  A copy of the plan shall be distributed to the participants, spectators, and 
anyone else associated with this event.  This plan shall be submitted as soon as 
possible for City review and approval and before distributed to the participants. 

 
8. Parking Plan 
 The applicant shall provide a parking plan for participants.   
 
9. Other 
 The applicant shall verify that no other conflicting school activities will take place during 

this event. 
 
 
I hereby agree to the conditions incorporated herein.  I understand that failure to execute this 
agreement will result in the denial of the Special Event Permit Application. 

 
 
 
Signature:   Date:  
 
Print Name:   Title:  
 
 

Item#10.              



ROUTE MAP 
Trabuco Hills High Schools 5K Run 

June 10, 2017 

 Mile 1 
 Mile 2 
 Mile 3 

START 

FINISH 

EXHIBIT B

Item#10.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

10/25/2016 

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Renewal of Letter of Credit Related to Mission Viejo Community Development Financing Authority 
(MVCDFA) Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (Mission Viejo Mall Improvement Project), 1999 Series 
A 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Authorize the Executive Director to execute the Letter of Credit Renewal for a Two Year Term at a fee of 
1.25%  
  
Executive Summary 

On November 16, 1998, the Community Development Agency (CDA) and Mission Viejo Associates 
(Developer) entered into an Owner Participation Agreement (OPA) related to the redevelopment of the 
Mission Viejo Mall.  In connection with the Project, the CDA, the City and the Mission Viejo Community 
Development Financing Authority (MVCDFA) also entered into various other agreements with the Developer, 
including the Bond Documents for the Series A Bonds issued May 1999 for the Project. 
 
The Authority’s financing in 1999 was an innovative private-public partnership based on a limited obligation 
structure in which debt service payments are limited to project revenue consisting of property and sales taxes.  
Mission Viejo, on the strength of its economy and the mall developer, the Simon Group, and with the help of 
its credit enhancer, Union Bank, was able to accomplish this financing.   
 
Union Bank’s role was critical to the original financing, as they guaranteed repayment to investors in the 
variable rate bonds through a letter-of-credit (LOC).  The original letter-of-credit from Union Bank has been 
renewed four times.  The current Union Bank letter-of-credit expires on November 18.  Union Bank has 
offered a two-year extension at a cost of 125 basis points (1.25%).  The current cost is 100 basis points.  That 
represents an increase of approximately $49,000 in the first year and $46,000 in the second year.  As the bond 
principal amount is paid down annually, the LOC cost will go down.  According to the terms of the agreement 
with the Developer, these fees are to be reimbursed by the Developer.   
 
On June 26, 2014, the Successor Agency and Oversight Board approved an agreement with KNN Public 
Finance (KNN) to assist with the process of securing an LOC for the bonds.  Additional information has been 
prepared by David Brodsly of KNN and is attached.  
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

May 6, 2013 - Amendment to Indenture of Trust and other documents realted to the MVCDFA  
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, 1999 Series A 
June 26, 2014 - Successor Agency Agreement with K�� Public Finance  

Item#11.              



 
 

   
Attachments 

KNN Memorandum, LOC Renewal Application 
 

 
 

Item#11.              



 

1300 Clay Street ,  Suite 1000 | Oakland,  CA 94612 | Main 510-839-8200 | Fax 510-208-8282 

1451 Quai l  Street ,  Suite 200 | Newport  Beach,  CA 92660 | Main 949-346-4900 | Fax 510-208-8282 

5757 W. Century Boulevard ,  Sui te 700 | Los Angeles ,  CA 90045 | Main 310-348-2901 | Fax 510-208-8282 

A Limited Liability Company 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
Date:  October 11, 2016 
 
To:  Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 
  City of Mission Viejo 
 
From:  David Brodsly, Managing Director 
  KNN Public Finance 
 
Subject: Letter-of-Credit Extension for the Mall Improvement Financing 

 
The Mission Viejo Successor Agency has engaged KNN Public Finance (“KNN”) to assist in 
various matters relating to its 1999 Mission Viejo Community Development Financing Authority 
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (Mission Viejo Mall Improvement Project) enforceable 
obligation. This bond issue financed various improvements at The Shops at Mission Viejo mall. Like 
most variable rate bonds, this bond issue was secured by a letter-of-credit (“LOC”), which is 
required by the market to ensure that the bonds can be “put” by investors at each weekly interest 
rate set. The LOC has been provided by Union Bank since issuance. The current LOC expires 
November 18, and Union Bank has offered to renew its LOC for two years under what we believe 
are favorable terms. 
  
The purpose of this memo is to provide background information supporting our recommendation 
that the City, the Successor Agency, and the City’s Financing Authority (all of whom have interests 
in the transaction) approve this extension by authorizing the “Application for Amendment to 
Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit” prepared by Union Bank.   
 
This memo also evaluates the alternative of fixing the interest rate on these bonds, and the various 
challenges and risks of doing so.
 
Background: The Mall Improvement Financing 
 
The Mission Viejo Community Development Financing Authority was formed by the City to serve 
as the issuer of bonds for the construction of capital facilities.  The Authority’s financing in 1999 
was an innovative private-public partnership, whereby the City leveraged the growth in property and 
sales taxes to be generated by a mall renovation to finance parking. While the financing is nominally 
secured by a City lease, payments are limited to revenues from tax increment (i.e., growth in 
property tax) and a portion of the sales tax generated from activity at the mall. This limited 
obligation structure was not common; it was used in only a handful of financings in California, 
including for public improvements associated with Disneyland’s California Adventure and the 
expansion of San Francisco’s Moscone Convention Center. Mission Viejo, on the strength of its 

Item#11.              



 

 

economy and the mall developer, the Simon Group, and with the help of its credit enhancer, Union 
Bank, was able to join this select group in accomplishing its financing.
 
Union Bank’s role was critical to the original financing, as they guaranteed repayment to investors in 
the bonds.  The bonds were issued as weekly variable rate bonds, which means that not only does 
the interest rate get set every week but also that, every seven days, investors can put their bonds 
back to the Financing Authority.  Union Bank’s letter-of-credit provides the liquidity that guarantees 
that those bonds would be purchased from investors if put. To the extent that the bonds could not 
be remarketed to new investors, the City, Redevelopment Agency (and now the Successor Agency) 
and Financing Authority would owe Union Bank under the terms of a reimbursement agreement. 
 
The original letter-of-credit from Union Bank has been renewed four times. 
  
Since the original transaction in 1999, a number of things have changed in public finance.  Several 
recessions shook the faith of the capital markets in transactions secured by limited real estate 
obligations. The market events of 2008 eliminated a number of credit providers (bond insurers and 
banks), and those that survived withdrew from certain markets and raised their fees. Most recently, 
the State dissolved redevelopment agencies, further shaking the confidence of the capital markets. 
 
The Union Bank letter-of-credit expires on November 18.  Unless renewed or replaced, the bonds 
would be tendered (put back to the bank). Under terms of the reimbursement agreement, the 
interest rate on such “bank bonds” would increase from its current rate (most recently re-set at 87 
basis points or 0.87%) to 4.5% (the current prime rate of 3.50%, plus 1%). If that were to occur, the 
surplus revenues available to the General Fund from sales tax would be redirected to repay the bank.  
 
As an alternative to renewing the LOC, the Authority could attempt to refinance the variable-rate 
bonds with new bonds bearing a fixed interest rate. The challenges with doing so, and the basis for 
our recommendation for retaining the current bond structure, are outlined further in this 
memorandum. 
 
The Letter of Credit Renewal 
 
Union Bank has offered a two-year extension at a cost of 125 basis points (1.25%). This is a shorter 
term than previously offered (the last renewal was for three years, and the ones before were for 
seven years), and a higher rate (the prior rate was 100 basis points, and the rate before was 62.5 basis 
points).  
 
Notwithstanding the shorter term and higher rates, we believe these are excellent terms in the 
current market.  Shorter terms for LOCs are increasingly common as it helps banks manage capital 
charges, and longer terms result in a higher cost. More significantly, we have not seen new letters of 
credit offered for transactions without underlying ratings or for transactions repaid out of tax 
increment for many years. Regarding the underlying rating, it is important to note that not only is 
the underlying transaction not rated (the bonds’ rating reflects that of Union Bank), but in our 
opinion this transaction would not receive an investment grade rating due to the fact that repayment 
is limited to incremental property and sales tax from the mall. 
 
We have assisted several cities recently in securing letters-of-credit, so are familiar with current 
market terms.  We have also worked with several cities that issued variable rate debt in the past 

Item#11.              



 

 

secured by redevelopment tax increment. In those cases, the letter of credit bank has indicated that 
they would not renew the LOC, requiring a refunding. We are currently working on refunding a 
variable rate bond for an A rated tax increment credit with nearly 7-times debt service coverage; 
their current LOC fee is 140 basis points. (Mission Viejo’s tax increment is not sufficient to pay all 
of the debt service.)  
 
In addition, the other terms of your current letter of credit and associated reimbursement agreement 
do not reflect current market practices; they are more favorable to the City and Authority. For 
example, while the rate on any bonds held by the bank would increase to 4.50% under the current 
documents, a new letter of credit would set a minimum rate of 8% on such bonds. A contemporary 
letter of credit would also require more rapid repayment of the debt in such circumstances.   
 
In our opinion, the Union Bank proposal for renewal is very favorable to the City. 
 
Review of the Fixed-Rate Alternative to the Current Debt Structure 
 
In connection with the pending need for LOC renewal and the recent raise in short term interest 
rates, we have reviewed the alternatives to the current debt structure. Besides the increase in the cost 
of the letter of credit, short-term interest rates have risen significantly. As recently as February of 
this year, the underlying interest rate paid to investors on the Mission Viejo bonds was an 
extraordinarily low 1 basis point. The most recent pricing was at 87 basis points. This increase is the 
result of several factors. The Federal Reserve Bank’s decision to raise the federal funds rate last 
December finally caught up with the short-term municipal market, as tax-exempt money market 
fund investors began to withdraw funds to reinvest in higher yielding taxable investments. As a 
result, interest rates on short-term tax-exempt rates were forced to rise. In addition, changes in the 
regulations governing money market funds have resulted in further erosion of investor interest in 
these funds, resulting in large outflows of money from these funds. These funds are the primary 
investors in variable rate municipal bonds, and therefore rates had to increase further to attract 
buyers.  
 
With the expectation of further interest rate hikes by the Federal Reserve Bank, short-term 
municipal bond rates may increase even higher. On the other hand, some observers believe that the 
market has overacted to the impending changes in money market fund rules, which go into effect 
this week. Rates may fall as the regulatory changes are digested. 
 
Nevertheless, given that long-term interest rates remain low, it is appropriate to consider a fixed-rate 
refunding of the Mall bonds. The challenge with such a refunding, however, is that the particular 
credit for the bonds is very unique, and would be difficult (meaning expensive) if at all possible to 
sell in the current market. 
 
As discussed above, the credit behind these bonds is extremely limited, representing the property tax 
and sales tax derived from the mall itself. To the extent that these revenues proved insufficient to 
pay debt service, investors have no recourse to any other source of repayment.  While such site-
specific revenue bonds are issued from time to time, they also have recourse to the underlying real 
estate, with foreclosure providing the ultimate remedy. The City’s mall bonds have no such recourse. 
Even these “land secured” bonds are sold without ratings, the municipal equivalent of higher-
yielding “junk bonds”.  
 

Item#11.              



 

 

Furthermore, the market has turned more skeptical as to the long-term prospects for large 
commercial development. Despite the fact that The Shops at Mission Viejo remains successful, and 
is still owned by a strong and pro-active mall developer, large malls have struggled to compete 
against big box retailers and the internet.  
 
It is our opinion that the only way to sell fixed-rate refunding bonds in the current market would be 
for the City to absorb the risk of these revenues by pledging its General Fund to make lease 
payments, notwithstanding whether the revenues were received.  That might, in fact, be a reasonable 
risk for the City to take, given its knowledge of the underlying credit fundamentals of the project. 
 
But a second problem is that any restructuring of the debt could jeopardize the Successor Agency’s 
ability to capture the property tax increment currently being used to pay most debt service on the 
bonds. The restructuring would require amendments to existing agreements, which would require 
Department of Finance approval. Given that the DOF has been hostile of the Successor Agency’s 
ability to continue to place this obligation on the Recognized Obligations Payment Schedule, 
assuming their cooperation in a revised financing structure seems to represent a very high risk. While 
the potential for rising interest rates might reduce the amount of sales taxes that the City retains 
from the current flow of funds, losing the tax increment pledge altogether is, in our view, a far 
greater risk.  
 
In our view, the risks to the retention of tax increment far outweigh the risk of rising interest rates. 
We further note that, at least in the short-run, the cost of the current financing structure is still less 
than would be that of a fixed-rate transaction, even if the City did pledge its General Fund. 
 
We want to address one other item relative to restructuring the current financing. When this 
transaction was originally executed, an interest rate cap was obtained to limit the potential impact of 
rising rates.  Such agreements are no longer widely available, and would be nearly impossible to 
obtain for this credit. If an interest rate cap were available, it would be very expensive and not cost 
effective.   
 

Item#11.              



Initials: Date:

FORM 04118-A (Rev. 0 /201 ) eFORM

NAME OF APPLICANT

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

APPLICATION FOR AMENDMENT TO IRREVOCABLE
STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT

ADDITIONAL AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

TELEPHONE NUMBER ACCOUNT NUMBER

X X

below and advise the beneficiary by: Telex/SWIFT or

BENEFICIARY NAME

Cancel this Credit

Expiry Date of Credit now extended to: (Month/Day/Year)

Final Expiry Date of Credit now extended to: (Month/Day/Year)

Change of Address of Beneficiary or Applicant now to:

Other Amendment(s) to terms and conditions:

IMPORTANT NOTICE

(A) Applicant understands that this amendment is subject to acceptance by the beneficiary and Bank. All other terms and conditions of Credit shall remain
unchanged, and all of Applicant's obligations and liabilities to Bank with respect to Credit shall apply to Credit as so amended.

(B) Applicant understands that the final form of the amendment to Credit may be subject to such revision and changes as are deemed necessary or
appropriate by Bank and Applicant hereby consents to such revisions and changes.

DATE DATE

BANK USE ONLY

(Increase/Extension): % P.A. (min. $ ) + $ Narrative: $

OFFICE PHONE NUMBERACCOUNT OFFICER PRINT NAME & TITLE

ADDITIONAL APPROVAL PRINT NAME & TITLE

RC NUMBER OFFICE NO. CUSTOMER CODE

X
SIGNATURE VERIFIED BY LIABILITY CONTROL LINE AVAILABILITY (Unit $1,000.00)TELETRANSMISSION AGREEMENT

Yes No N/A
Current
Amount: $ This L/C: $

X

AMENDMENT COMMISSION

We ("Applicant") request you, Union Bank, N.A. ("Bank") to amend the captioned standby letter of credit ("Credit") as

Amount: increase or decreased by:

Total Amount Now:

(in figures and words, including currency type)

PLEASE CHECK AND COMPLETE APPLICABLE BOXES BELOW.

ACCOUNT OFFICER APPROVAL

ADDITIONAL APPROVAL

Letter of Credit
Number:

íðêÍîíïèèð

Þ¿²µ ±º Ò»© Ç±®µ Ì®«¬ Ý±³°¿²§ Ò¿¬·±²¿´ ß±½·¿¬·±² ß¬¬æ Ù®»¹ Ý¸»²¿·´ øîïí÷êíðóêîîç

ì ïïñïèñîðïè

ì
Ú»» ·²½®»¿»¼ ¬± ïòîëû ¿²²«¿´´§ º®±³ ïòðûò

Ó··±² Ê·»¶± Ý±³³«²·¬§ Ü»ª»´±°³»²¬ Ú·²¿²½·²¹ ß«¬¸±®·¬§

Item#11.              



 



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

10/25/2016 

Prepared By: Karen Hamman, City Clerk 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Ordinances to Ensure Prohibition of all Marijuana Uses in Light of the Potential Passage of Proposition 64 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Action 

(1) Adopt Ordinance 16-315 a Non-Urgency Ordinance Adding Chapter 11.23B to Prohibit Recreational 
Marijuana Uses in the City to the Fullest Extent Allowed by State Law; and (2) adopt Ordinance 16-316 a 
Non-Urgency Ordinance Replacing Chapter 11.23 with Chapter 11.23A to Prohibit Medical Marijuana Uses in 
the City to the Fullest Extent Allowed by State Law. 
 
 
 
  
Executive Summary 

At the regular City Council Meeting of October 12, 2016, the City Council introduced Ordinances 13-315 and 
16-316.  The ordinances are now presented to the City Council for adoption. 
 
 
 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

October 12, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Attachments 

Draft Ordinances 16-315 and 16-316 
 
 

 
 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

ORDI�A�CE 16-315 
 

A� ORDI�A�CE OF THE CITY OF MISSIO� VIEJO, CALIFOR�IA, ADDI�G 
CHAPTER 11.23B TO TITLE 11 OF THE MISSIO� VIEJO MU�ICIPAL CODE TO 

PROHIBIT RECREATIO�AL MARIJUA�A BUSI�ESSES, MARIJUA�A 
CULTIVATIO� A�D MARIJUA�A DELIVERY WITHI� THE CITY BOU�DARIES 

A�D TO E�SURE PROSECUTORIAL A�D JURISDICTIO�AL PROVISIO�S TO 
THE CITY OR STATE AS RESPECTIVELY REQUIRED. 

 
RECITALS 

 
 1. California Constitution Article 11, Section 7 authorizes the City of Mission Viejo 
(“City”) to make and enforce within its limits all local, police, sanitary, and other ordinances and 
regulations not in conflict with general laws; and 
 
 2. In 1996, the voters of the State of California approved Proposition 215, known as 
the Compassionate Use Act and codified as Health and Safety Code Section 11362.5 (the 
"CUA"), which exempts patients and their primary caregivers from criminal prosecution under 
state law for the possession and cultivation of marijuana for the patient's personal medical 
purposes; and 
 
 3. In 2003, the California Legislature enacted Senate Bill 420, known as the Medical 
Marijuana Program Act and codified as Health and Safety Code Section 11362.7 et seq. (the 
"MMPA") to create a voluntary program for the issuance of identification cards to patients and 
their primary caregivers and to immunize from prosecution a range of conduct ancillary to the 
provision of medical marijuana to qualified patients; and 
 
 4. In 2011, Assembly Bill 1300 was adopted and codified as Health & Safety Code 
Section 11362.83 to clarify that cities are free to adopt and enforce local ordinances that regulate 
the location, operation, or establishment of medical marijuana cooperatives or collectives; and 
 
 5. In City of Riverside v. Inland Empire Patients Health and Wellness Center, Inc. 
(2013) 56 Ca1.4th 729, the California Supreme Court held that neither the CVA nor the MMPA 
preempt the authority of cities and counties to regulate or prohibit facilities that distribute 
medical marijuana; and 
 
 6. In Maral v. City of Live Oak (2013) 221 Cal. App. 4th 975, the Court of Appeal 
held neither the CVA nor the MMPA preempt a city's police power to completely prohibit 
marijuana cultivation within a city; and 
 
 7. A recent case involving the City of Fresno upheld bans on all cultivation and 
clarified enforcement protocols; and  
 
 8. On October 9, 2015, a series of bills (Assembly Bill 266, Assembly Bill 243, and 
Senate Bill (43) that are collectively referred to as the Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety 
Act ('''MMRSA'') were enacted to provide for the licensure and regulation of medical marijuana 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

by the California Department of Consumer Affairs and the California Department of Food and 
Agriculture; and 
 

9. The MMRSA expressly preserves the authority of cities and counties to regulate 
or prohibit the cultivation and delivery of medical marijuana, as well as medical marijuana 
dispensaries; and  

 
10. The City passed Urgency Ordinance 15-309 on December 8, 2015, which, 

amongst other things, prohibits medical marijuana businesses, medical marijuana delivery, and 
marijuana cultivation anywhere in the City; and  
 
 11. On June 28, 2016, the Secretary of State certified Proposition 64, the Control, 
Regulate, and Tax Adult Use of Marijuana Act (“AUMA”), for the November 8, 2016 ballot; and 
 
 12. The AUMA would become law if a majority of the electorate votes “Yes” on the 
proposition; and 
 
 13. The AUMA would regulate, among other items, the use of marijuana for personal 
and commercial purposes, including the recreational use of marijuana by adults over 21 years of 
age; and 
 
 14. To regulate personal use of marijuana, the AUMA would add Section 11362.1 to 
the Health and Safety Code, which makes it “lawful under state and local law” for persons 21 
years of age or older to “possess, process, transport, purchase, obtain, or give away to persons 21 
years of age or older without any compensation whatsoever” up to 28.5 grams of marijuana in 
the form of concentrated cannabis or not more than eight grams of marijuana in the form of 
concentrated cannabis contained in marijuana products; and 
 
 15. The AUMA would make it lawful for those individuals to “possess, plant, 
cultivate, harvest, dry, or process not more than six living marijuana plants and possess the 
marijuana produced by the plants”; and 
 
 16. The AUMA would make it lawful for those individuals to smoke or ingest 
marijuana or marijuana products; and 
 
 17. To regulate commercial use of marijuana, the AUMA would add Division 10 
(Marijuana) to the Business & Professions Code, which grants state agencies “the exclusive 
authority to create, issue, renew discipline, suspend, or revoke” licenses for businesses including 
the transportation, storage, distribution, sale, cultivation, manufacturing, and testing of 
marijuana; and 
 
 18. The AUMA provides that the above state agencies shall promulgate rules and 
regulations and shall begin issuing licenses under Division 10 by January 1, 2018; and 
 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

 19. The AUMA states that a local jurisdiction shall not prevent transportation of 
marijuana or marijuana products on public roads by a licensee transporting marijuana or 
marijuana products in compliance with Division 10; and 
 
 20. The AUMA would authorize cities to “reasonably regulate” without completely 
prohibiting cultivation of marijuana inside a private residence or inside an “accessory structure to 
a private residence located upon the grounds of a private residence that is fully enclosed and 
secure; and 
 
 21. The AUMA would authorize cities to completely prohibit outdoor cultivation on 
the grounds of a private residence, up to and until a “determination by the California Attorney 
General that nonmedical use of marijuana is lawful in the State of California under federal law”; 
and 
 
 22. The AUMA would authorize cities to completely prohibit the establishment or 
operation of any marijuana business licensed under Division 10 within its jurisdiction, including 
marijuana dispensaries, marijuana retailers, and marijuana delivery services; and 
 
 23. Absent appropriate local regulation authorized by the AUMA, state regulations 
will control; and 
 
 24. The City has permissive zoning standards which prohibit all uses not expressly 
authorized as allowed and has applied that without exception to all instances of recreational and 
medicinal marijuana, including, but not limited to, cultivation, distribution, dispensing, 
transportation, sales and gifting; and 
 
 25. The presence of marijuana cultivation operations has the potential to lead to: (1) 
an increase in break-ins and thefts due to the high monetary value of marijuana plants; (2) 
dangerous alterations to the electrical wiring of buildings; (3) an increase in the amount of mold 
spores present in buildings; (4) the potential for exposure to or increased usage by school aged 
children; and (5) the emittance of strong or noxious odors from the marijuana plants; and 
 
 26. The City has a compelling interest in protecting the public health, welfare and 
safety of its residents, as well as preserving the peace and quiet of the neighborhoods in the City; 
and 
 
 27. The City desires to amend Urgency Ordinance 15-309, adopted on December 8, 
2015, to clarify its medical marijuana regulations in conjunction with this Ordinance’s 
recreational marijuana regulations to be consistent with the provisions of MMRSA and the 
AUMA, if the proposition passes; and  
 
 28. The City desires to amend the Mission Viejo Municipal Code (“MVMC”) to 
prohibit the cultivation of marijuana anywhere within the City to the maximum extent allowable 
under California law, expressly regulate cultivation everywhere in the City to the extent a 
complete prohibition on indoor cultivation is not permitted under California law, and to add 
additional sections to the Mission Viejo Municipal Code that prohibit recreational marijuana 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

dispensaries, dispensing, mobile marijuana dispensaries and all other activities involving 
recreational marijuana to preemptively address some proposed changes to California law in the 
event AUMA passes on November 8, 2016. 
 
 �OW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COU�CIL OF THE CITY OF MISSIO� VIEJO 
DOES ORDAI� AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTIO� 1.  The Recitals stated above are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
SECTIO� 2.  Chapter 11.23B (Recreational Marijuana Regulations) is hereby added to 

Title 11 of the Mission Viejo Municipal Code to read as follows: 
 

“CHAPTER 11.23B 
RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA REGULATIONS 

 
 Sections 
  11.23B.001 Purpose. 
  11.23B.002 Definitions. 
  11.23B.003 Personal Recreational Use. 
  11.23B.004 Commercial Use. 
  11.23B.005 Public nuisance declared. 
  11.23B.006 Violations. 
 

11.23B.001 Purpose 
 
The purpose of this Chapter is to regulate personal and commercial recreational 
marijuana uses. Nothing in this Chapter shall preempt or make inapplicable any provision 
of state or federal law. 

 
 11.23B.002 Definitions 
  

For the purpose of this Chapter, the following words and phrases will be construed to 
have the meanings set forth in this chapter unless it is apparent from the context that a 
different meaning is intended. 
 
(A)  “Authorized grower” means a person 21 years and older who is authorized by, and in 
compliance with, federal or state law to cultivate marijuana indoors for personal or 
medical use. 

 
(B)  “Commercial marijuana activity” includes the cultivation, delivery, possession, 
manufacture, distribution, processing, storing, laboratory testing, labeling, transportation, 
distribution, or sale of marijuana and marijuana products. 
 
(C)  “Cultivation” means any activity involving the planting, growing, harvesting, drying, 
curing, grading, or trimming of marijuana. 
 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

(D)  “Delivery” means the commercial transfer of marijuana or marijuana products to a 
customer. “Delivery” also includes the use by a retailer of any technology platform 
owned and controlled by the retailer, or independently licensed under California law, that 
enables customers to arrange for or facilitate the commercial transfer by a licensed 
retailer of marijuana or marijuana products. 
 
(E)  “Distribution” means the procurement, sale, and transport of marijuana and 
marijuana products between entities for commercial use purposes. 
 
(F) “Fully enclosed and secure structure” means a fully-enclosed space within a building 
that has a complete roof, a foundation, slab or equivalent base to which the floor is 
secured by bolts or similar attachments, is secure against unauthorized entry, is accessible 
only through one or more lockable doors, and is not visible from a public right-of-way.  
 
(G) “Indoors” means within a fully enclosed and secure structure as that structure is 
defined in subsection (F) of this section. 

 
(H) “Manufacture” means to compound, blend, extract, infuse, or otherwise make or 
prepare a marijuana product. 
 
(I) “Marijuana” means as defined in California State Law and as hereafter: “Marijuana 
means all parts of the plant Cannabis sativa Linnaeus, whether growing or not; the seeds 
thereof; the resin, whether crude or purified, extracted from any part of the plant; and 
every compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant, its 
seeds or resin.” 
 
(J)  “Marijuana business” means a marijuana dispensary and/or a business, establishment, 
facility, operation or person that offers or engages in any commercial marijuana activity. 
 
(K) “Marijuana dispensary” or “dispensary” means any facility or location, including, 
without limitation, any type of motor vehicle or mobile facility that is not limited to a 
fixed location, where marijuana or marijuana products are offered, made available and/or 
distributed for retail sale, including, but not limited to an establishment that provides 
marijuana delivery services. 
 
(L)  “Operation” means any effort to locate, operate, own, lease, supply, allow to be 
operated, or aid, abet or assist in the operation of a marijuana business. 

 
(M)  “Person” includes any individual, firm, co-partnership, joint venture, association, 
corporation, limited liability company, estate, trust, business trust, receiver, syndicate, or 
any other group or combination acting as a unit. 
 
(N)  “Private residence” means a house, an apartment unit, a mobile home, or other 
similar dwelling. 
 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

(O)  “Sale” includes any transaction whereby, for any consideration, title to marijuana is 
transferred from one person to another, and includes the delivery of marijuana or 
marijuana products pursuant to an order placed for the purchase of the same and 
soliciting or receiving an order for the same. 

 
11.23B.003 Personal Recreational Use. 
 
(A) For purposes of this subsection, personal recreational use, possession, purchase, 
transport, or dissemination of marijuana shall be considered unlawful in all areas of the 
City to the extent it is unlawful under California law. 

 
(B) Outdoor cultivation. A person may not plant, cultivate, harvest, dry, or process 
marijuana plants outdoors in any zoning district of the City. No use permit, building 
permit, variance, or any other permit or entitlement, whether administrative or 
discretionary, shall be approved or issued for any such use or activity. 

 
(C) Indoor cultivation.  

 
(1) A person may not plant, cultivate, harvest, dry, or process marijuana plants 
inside a private residence, or inside an accessory structure to a private residence 
located upon the grounds of a private residence, or inside any other enclosed 
structure within any zoning district of the City. No use permit, building permit, 
variance, or any other permit or entitlement, whether administrative or 
discretionary, shall be approved or issued for any such use or activity. 

 
(2) To the extent a complete prohibition on indoor cultivation is not permitted 
under California law, an authorized grower may cultivate marijuana only in a 
private residence in a residential zone, only indoors, and only for personal use, 
subject to the following regulations: 
 

(a) The marijuana cultivation area shall be located indoors within a 
residential structure and shall not exceed fifty square feet and not exceed 
ten feet in height, nor shall it come within twelve (12) inches of the ceiling 
or any cultivation lighting.  Cultivation in an accessory structure on the 
property of the residence but not physically part of the home is permitted, 
as long as it is fully enclosed, secure, not visible from a public right-of-
way and meeting all requirements in this Chapter. 
 
(b) Marijuana cultivation lighting shall not exceed one thousand two 
hundred watts in total for the total cultivation area within the residence. 
 
(c) The use of gas products such as but not limited to CO2, butane, 
methane, or any other flammable or non-flammable gas for marijuana 
cultivation or processing is prohibited. 
 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

(d) There shall be no exterior visibility or evidence of marijuana 
cultivation outside the private residence from the public right-of-way, 
including but not limited to any marijuana plants, equipment used in the 
growing and cultivation operation, and any light emanating from 
cultivation lighting. 
 
(e) The authorized grower shall reside full-time in the residence where the 
marijuana cultivation occurs. 
 
(f) The authorized grower shall not participate in marijuana cultivation in 
any other location within the City. 
 
(g) The residence shall include fully functional and usable kitchen, 
bathroom, and bedroom areas for their intended use by the resident 
authorized grower, and the premises shall not be used primarily or 
exclusively for marijuana cultivation. 
 
(h) The marijuana cultivation area shall be in compliance with the current 
building, housing, electrical, and fire codes as adopted by the City, as 
amended from time to time. 
 
(i) The marijuana cultivation area shall not result in a nuisance or 
adversely affect the health, welfare, or safety of the resident or nearby 
residents by creating dust, glare, heat, noise, noxious gasses, odors, 
smoke, traffic, vibration, or other impacts, or be hazardous due to use or 
storage of materials, processes, products or wastes. 
 
(j) No more than 6 marijuana plants, mature or immature, are permitted for 
indoor personal cultivation under this Chapter. 
 
(k) Marijuana in excess of 28.5 grams produced by plants kept for indoor 
personal cultivation under this Chapter must be kept in a locked space on 
the grounds of the private residence not visible from the public right-of-
way. 

 
11.23B.004 Commercial Recreational Use. 
 
(A) The establishment or operation of any marijuana business is prohibited anywhere in 
the City. No use permit, building permit, variance, or any other permit or entitlement, 
whether administrative or discretionary, shall be approved or issued for the establishment 
or operation of any such business or operation. 

 
(B) No person or marijuana business shall engage in any commercial marijuana activity 
anywhere in the City, including the delivery of any marijuana or marijuana products to 
any location within the City, regardless of where the marijuana business is located, or 
engage in any operation for this purpose. 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

 
11.23B.005 Public nuisance declared. 
 
Any violation of the provisions of this Chapter is hereby declared a public nuisance and 
shall be abated pursuant to all available remedies. 
 
11.23B.006 Violations 
 
Violations of this Chapter may be enforced by any applicable law; provided, however, 
that a person who is in full compliance with the Compassionate Use Act (California 
Health & Safety Code Section 11362.5) ("CUA") and the Medical Marijuana Program 
Act (California Health & Safety Code Section 11362.7 et seq.) ("MMPA") shall not be 
subject to criminal penalties and nothing in this chapter is intended, nor shall it be 
construed, to conflict with or burden any defense to criminal prosecution under the CUA 
and the MMPA. Notwithstanding the foregoing and in addition to the specific 
prohibitions set forth in this code, this chapter is intended to prohibit all activities for 
which a license from the State of California is required under Proposition 64, the Control, 
Regulate, and Tax Adult Use of Marijuana Act (“AUMA”). Accordingly, the City shall 
not issue any permit, license, approval or other entitlement for any activity for which a 
license from the State of California is required under the AUMA. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, nothing in this Chapter is intended or shall be interpreted as limiting the city's 
rights under all applicable laws, rules and regulations, including, but not limited to, its 
police powers and applicable case law, to regulate the storage, cultivation, selling, giving 
away, delivery or other distribution or dispensing of marijuana or marijuana-related 
products." 

  
SECTIO� 3. CEQA. This Ordinance is not a project within the meaning of Section 

15378 of the State of California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) Guidelines, because it has 
no potential for resulting in physical change in the environment, directly or indirectly. The City 
Council further finds, under Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 15061(b)(3), 
that this Ordinance is nonetheless exempt from the requirements of CEQA in that the activity is 
covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for 
causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there is 
no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the 
activity is not subject to CEQA.  
 

SECTIO� 4. Severability. If any provision or clause of this Ordinance or any application 
of it to any person, firm, organization, partnership or corporation is held invalid, such invalidity 
shall not affect other provisions of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid 
provision or application. To this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be 
severable. 
 
 SECTIO� 5.  Effective Date. The Mayor shall sign this Ordinance and the City Clerk 
shall attest thereto and shall within fifteen (15) days of its adoption cause it, or a summary of it, 
to be published in a general circulation newspaper published and circulated in the City of 
Mission Viejo.  This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption. This 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

Ordinance shall supersede Urgency Ordinance 16-313, adopted on October 12, 2016, in its 
entirety, thirty (30) days after this Ordinance’s adoption. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of October, 2016. 
 
 
             
      Frank Ury 

Mayor  
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   } 
COUNTY OF ORANGE       } ss. 
CITY OF MISSION VIEJO  } 
 
I, Karen Hamman, City Clerk of the City of Mission Viejo, California, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing Ordinance 16-315 was duly and regularly introduced by the City Council of the City 
of Mission Viejo at a regular meeting thereof on the 12th day of October, 2016 and that the same 
was passed and adopted by the following vote, to wit on October 25, 2016: 
 
 
AYES:             
NOES:             
ABSENT:        
 
 
                                                             
Karen Hamman 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                                                             
William P. Curley, III 
City Attorney 
 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

ORDI�A�CE 16-316 
 

A� ORDI�A�CE OF THE CITY OF MISSIO� VIEJO, CALIFOR�IA, REPLACI�G 
CHAPTER 11.23 OF THE MISSIO� VIEJO MU�ICIPAL CODE WITH CHAPTER 

11.23A TO PROHIBIT MEDICAL MARIJUA�A BUSI�ESSES, MARIJUA�A 
CULTIVATIO� A�D MARIJUA�A DELIVERY WITHI� THE CITY BOU�DARIES 

A�D TO E�SURE PROSECUTORIAL A�D JURISDICTIO�AL PROVISIO�S TO 
THE CITY OR STATE AS RESPECTIVELY REQUIRED. 

 
RECITALS 

 
 1. California Constitution Article 11, Section 7 authorizes the City of Mission Viejo 
(“City”) to make and enforce within its limits all local, police, sanitary, and other ordinances and 
regulations not in conflict with general laws; and 
 
 2. In 1996, the voters of the State of California approved Proposition 215, known as 
the Compassionate Use Act and codified as Health and Safety Code Section 11362.5 (the 
"CUA"), which exempts patients and their primary caregivers from criminal prosecution under 
state law for the possession and cultivation of marijuana for the patient's personal medical 
purposes; and 
 
 3. In 2003, the California Legislature enacted Senate Bill 420, known as the Medical 
Marijuana Program Act and codified as Health and Safety Code Section 11362.7 et seq. (the 
"MMPA") to create a voluntary program for the issuance of identification cards to patients and 
their primary caregivers and to immunize from prosecution a range of conduct ancillary to the 
provision of medical marijuana to qualified patients; and 
 
 4. In 2011, Assembly Bill 1300 was adopted and codified as Health & Safety Code 
Section 11362.83 to clarify that cities are free to adopt and enforce local ordinances that regulate 
the location, operation, or establishment of medical marijuana cooperatives or collectives; and 
 
 5. In City of Riverside v. Inland Empire Patients Health and Wellness Center, Inc. 
(2013) 56 Ca1.4th 729, the California Supreme Court held that neither the CVA nor the MMPA 
preempt the authority of cities and counties to regulate or prohibit facilities that distribute 
medical marijuana; and 
 
 6. In Maral v. City of Live Oak (2013) 221 Cal. App. 4th 975, the Court of Appeal 
held neither the CVA nor the MMPA preempt a city's police power to completely prohibit 
marijuana cultivation within a city; and 
 
 7. A recent case involving the City of Fresno upheld bans on all cultivation and 
clarified enforcement protocols; and  
 
 8. On October 9, 2015, a series of bills (Assembly Bill 266, Assembly Bill 243, and 
Senate Bill (43) that are collectively referred to as the Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety 
Act ('''MMRSA'') were enacted to provide for the licensure and regulation of medical marijuana 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

by the California Department of Consumer Affairs and the California Department of Food and 
Agriculture; and 
 

9. The MMRSA expressly preserves the authority of cities and counties to regulate 
or prohibit the cultivation and delivery of medical marijuana, as well as medical marijuana 
dispensaries; and  

 
10. The City passed Urgency Ordinance 15-309 on December 8, 2015, which, 

amongst other things, prohibits medical marijuana businesses, medical marijuana delivery, and 
marijuana cultivation anywhere in the City; and  
 
 11. On June 28, 2016, the Secretary of State certified Proposition 64, the Control, 
Regulate, and Tax Adult Use of Marijuana Act (“AUMA”), for the November 8, 2016 ballot; and 
 
 12. The AUMA would become law if a majority of the electorate votes “Yes” on the 
proposition; and 
 
 13. The AUMA would regulate, among other items, the use of marijuana for personal 
and commercial purposes, including the recreational use of marijuana by adults over 21 years of 
age; and 
 
 14. To regulate personal use of marijuana, the AUMA would add Section 11362.1 to 
the Health and Safety Code, which makes it “lawful under state and local law” for persons 21 
years of age or older to “possess, process, transport, purchase, obtain, or give away to persons 21 
years of age or older without any compensation whatsoever” up to 28.5 grams of marijuana in 
the form of concentrated cannabis or not more than eight grams of marijuana in the form of 
concentrated cannabis contained in marijuana products; and 
 
 15. The AUMA would make it lawful for those individuals to “possess, plant, 
cultivate, harvest, dry, or process not more than six living marijuana plants and possess the 
marijuana produced by the plants”; and 
 
 16. The AUMA would make it lawful for those individuals to smoke or ingest 
marijuana or marijuana products; and 
 
 17. To regulate commercial use of marijuana, the AUMA would add Division 10 
(Marijuana) to the Business & Professions Code, which grants state agencies “the exclusive 
authority to create, issue, renew discipline, suspend, or revoke” licenses for businesses including 
the transportation, storage, distribution, sale, cultivation, manufacturing, and testing of 
marijuana; and 
 
 18. The AUMA provides that the above state agencies shall promulgate rules and 
regulations and shall begin issuing licenses under Division 10 by January 1, 2018; and 
 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

 19. The AUMA states that a local jurisdiction shall not prevent transportation of 
marijuana or marijuana products on public roads by a licensee transporting marijuana or 
marijuana products in compliance with Division 10; and 
 
 20. The AUMA would authorize cities to “reasonably regulate” without completely 
prohibiting cultivation of marijuana inside a private residence or inside an “accessory structure to 
a private residence located upon the grounds of a private residence that is fully enclosed and 
secure; and 
 
 21. The AUMA would authorize cities to completely prohibit outdoor cultivation on 
the grounds of a private residence, up to and until a “determination by the California Attorney 
General that nonmedical use of marijuana is lawful in the State of California under federal law”; 
and 
 
 22. The AUMA would authorize cities to completely prohibit the establishment or 
operation of any marijuana business licensed under Division 10 within its jurisdiction, including 
marijuana dispensaries, marijuana retailers, and marijuana delivery services; and 
 
 23. Absent appropriate local regulation authorized by the AUMA, state regulations 
will control; and 
 
 24. The City has permissive zoning standards which prohibit all uses not expressly 
authorized as allowed and has applied that without exception to all instances of recreational and 
medicinal marijuana, including, but not limited to, cultivation, distribution, dispensing, 
transportation, sales and gifting; and 
 
 25. The presence of marijuana cultivation operations has the potential to lead to: (1) 
an increase in break-ins and thefts due to the high monetary value of marijuana plants; (2) 
dangerous alterations to the electrical wiring of buildings; (3) an increase in the amount of mold 
spores present in buildings; (4) the potential for exposure to or increased usage by school aged 
children; and (5) the emittance of strong or noxious odors from the marijuana plants; and 
 
 26. The City has a compelling interest in protecting the public health, welfare and 
safety of its residents, as well as preserving the peace and quiet of the neighborhoods in the City; 
and 
 
 27. The City desires to adopt Ordinance 16-XXX, adding Chapter 11.23B to the 
Mission Viejo Municipal Code (“MVMC”), to immediately prohibit the cultivation of marijuana 
anywhere within the City to the maximum extent allowable under California law, expressly 
regulate cultivation everywhere in the City to the extent a complete prohibition on indoor 
cultivation is not permitted under California law, and to add additional sections to the Mission 
Viejo Municipal Code that prohibit recreational marijuana dispensaries, dispensing, mobile 
marijuana dispensaries and all other activities involving recreational marijuana to preemptively 
address some proposed changes to California law in the event AUMA passes on November 8, 
2016; and  
 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

 28. The City desires to amend Urgency Ordinance 15-309, adopted on December 8, 
2015, to clarify its medical marijuana regulations in conjunction with Ordinance 16-XXX’s 
recreational marijuana regulations to be consistent with the provisions of MMRSA and the 
AUMA, if the proposition passes. 
 
 
 �OW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COU�CIL OF THE CITY OF MISSIO� VIEJO 
DOES ORDAI� AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTIO� 1.  The Recitals stated above are incorporated herein by reference. 
 

SECTIO� 2.  Chapter 11.23 of the Mission Viejo Municipal Code is hereby deleted in 
its entirety and replaced with Chapter 11.23A (Medical Marijuana Regulations) to read as 
follows: 
 

“CHAPTER 11.23A 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA REGULATIONS 

 
 Sections 
  11.23A.001 Purpose. 
  11.23A.002 Definitions. 
  11.23A.003 Personal Medical Use. 
  11.23A.004 Commercial Medical Use. 
  11.23A.005 Public nuisance declared. 
  11.23A.006 Violations. 
 

11.23A.001 Purpose 
 
The purpose of this Chapter is to regulate personal and commercial medical marijuana 
uses. Nothing in this Chapter shall preempt or make inapplicable any provision of state or 
federal law. 

 
 11.23A.002 Definitions 
  

For the purpose of this Chapter, the following words and phrases will be construed to 
have the meanings set forth in this chapter unless it is apparent from the context that a 
different meaning is intended. 
 
(A)  “Authorized grower” means a person 21 years and older who is authorized by, and in 
compliance with, federal or state law to cultivate marijuana indoors for personal or 
medical use. 

 
(B)  “Commercial marijuana activity” includes the cultivation, delivery, possession, 
manufacture, distribution, processing, storing, laboratory testing, labeling, transportation, 
distribution, or sale of marijuana and marijuana products. 
 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

(C)  “Cultivation” means any activity involving the planting, growing, harvesting, drying, 
curing, grading, or trimming of marijuana. 
 
(D)  “Delivery” means the commercial transfer of marijuana or marijuana products to a 
customer. “Delivery” also includes the use by a retailer of any technology platform 
owned and controlled by the retailer, or independently licensed under California law, that 
enables customers to arrange for or facilitate the commercial transfer by a licensed 
retailer of marijuana or marijuana products. 
 
(E)  “Distribution” means the procurement, sale, and transport of marijuana and 
marijuana products between entities for commercial use purposes. 
 
(F) “Fully enclosed and secure structure” means a fully-enclosed space within a building 
that has a complete roof, a foundation, slab or equivalent base to which the floor is 
secured by bolts or similar attachments, is secure against unauthorized entry, is accessible 
only through one or more lockable doors, and is not visible from a public right-of-way.  
 
(G) “Indoors” means within a fully enclosed and secure structure as that structure is 
defined in subsection (F) of this section. 

 
(H) “Manufacture” means to compound, blend, extract, infuse, or otherwise make or 
prepare a marijuana product. 
 
(I) “Marijuana” means as defined in California State Law and as hereafter: “Marijuana 
means all parts of the plant Cannabis sativa Linnaeus, whether growing or not; the seeds 
thereof; the resin, whether crude or purified, extracted from any part of the plant; and 
every compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant, its 
seeds or resin.” 
 
(J)  “Marijuana business” means a marijuana dispensary and/or a business, establishment, 
facility, operation or person that offers or engages in any commercial marijuana activity. 
 
(K) “Marijuana dispensary” or “dispensary” means any facility or location, including, 
without limitation, any type of motor vehicle or mobile facility that is not limited to a 
fixed location, where marijuana or marijuana products are offered, made available and/or 
distributed for retail sale, including, but not limited to an establishment that provides 
marijuana delivery services. 
 
(L)  “Operation” means any effort to locate, operate, own, lease, supply, allow to be 
operated, or aid, abet or assist in the operation of a marijuana business. 

 
(M)  “Person” includes any individual, firm, co-partnership, joint venture, association, 
corporation, limited liability company, estate, trust, business trust, receiver, syndicate, or 
any other group or combination acting as a unit. 
 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

(N)  “Private residence” means a house, an apartment unit, a mobile home, or other 
similar dwelling. 
 
(O)  “Sale” includes any transaction whereby, for any consideration, title to marijuana is 
transferred from one person to another, and includes the delivery of marijuana or 
marijuana products pursuant to an order placed for the purchase of the same and 
soliciting or receiving an order for the same. 

 
11.23A.003 Personal Medical Use. 
 
(A) For purposes of this subsection, personal medical use, possession, purchase, 
transport, or dissemination of marijuana shall be considered unlawful in all areas of the 
City to the extent it is unlawful under California law. 

 
(B) Outdoor cultivation. A person may not plant, cultivate, harvest, dry, or process 
marijuana plants outdoors for in any zoning district of the City. No use permit, building 
permit, variance, or any other permit or entitlement, whether administrative or 
discretionary, shall be approved or issued for any such use or activity. 

 
(C) Indoor cultivation.  

 
(1) A person may not plant, cultivate, harvest, dry, or process marijuana plants 
inside a private residence, or inside an accessory structure to a private residence 
located upon the grounds of a private residence, or inside any other enclosed 
structure within any zoning district of the City. No use permit, building permit, 
variance, or any other permit or entitlement, whether administrative or 
discretionary, shall be approved or issued for any such use or activity. 

 
(2) To the extent a complete prohibition on indoor cultivation is not permitted 
under California law, an authorized grower may cultivate marijuana only in a 
private residence in a residential zone, only indoors, and only for personal use, 
subject to the following regulations: 
 

(a) The marijuana cultivation area shall be located indoors within a 
residential structure and shall not exceed fifty square feet and not exceed 
ten feet in height, nor shall it come within twelve (12) inches of the ceiling 
or any cultivation lighting.  Cultivation in an accessory structure on the 
property of the residence but not physically part of the home is permitted, 
as long as it is fully enclosed, secure, not visible from a public right-of-
way and meeting all requirements in this Chapter. 
 
(b) Marijuana cultivation lighting shall not exceed one thousand two 
hundred watts in total for the total cultivation area within the residence. 
 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

(c) The use of gas products such as but not limited to CO2, butane, 
methane, or any other flammable or non-flammable gas for marijuana 
cultivation or processing is prohibited. 
 
(d) There shall be no exterior visibility or evidence of marijuana 
cultivation outside the private residence from the public right-of-way, 
including but not limited to any marijuana plants, equipment used in the 
growing and cultivation operation, and any light emanating from 
cultivation lighting. 
 
(e) The authorized grower shall reside full-time in the residence where the 
marijuana cultivation occurs. 
 
(f) The authorized grower shall not participate in marijuana cultivation in 
any other location within the City. 
 
(g) The residence shall include fully functional and usable kitchen, 
bathroom, and bedroom areas for their intended use by the resident 
authorized grower, and the premises shall not be used primarily or 
exclusively for marijuana cultivation. 
 
(h) The marijuana cultivation area shall be in compliance with the current 
building, housing, electrical, and fire codes as adopted by the City, as 
amended from time to time. 
 
(i) The marijuana cultivation area shall not result in a nuisance or 
adversely affect the health, welfare, or safety of the resident or nearby 
residents by creating dust, glare, heat, noise, noxious gasses, odors, 
smoke, traffic, vibration, or other impacts, or be hazardous due to use or 
storage of materials, processes, products or wastes. 
 
(j) No more than 6 marijuana plants, mature or immature, are permitted for 
indoor personal cultivation under this Chapter. 
 
(k) Marijuana in excess of 28.5 grams produced by plants kept for indoor 
personal cultivation under this Chapter must be kept in a locked space on 
the grounds of the private residence not visible from the public right-of-
way. 

 
11.23A.004 Commercial Medical Use. 
 
(A) The establishment or operation of any marijuana business is prohibited anywhere in 
the City. No use permit, building permit, variance, or any other permit or entitlement, 
whether administrative or discretionary, shall be approved or issued for the establishment 
or operation of any such business or operation. 

 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

(B) No person or marijuana business shall engage in any commercial marijuana activity 
anywhere in the City, including the delivery of any marijuana or marijuana products to 
any location within the City, regardless of where the marijuana business is located, or 
engage in any operation for this purpose. 

 
11.23A.005 Public nuisance declared. 
 
Any violation of the provisions of this Chapter is hereby declared a public nuisance and 
shall be abated pursuant to all available remedies. 
 
11.23A.006 Violations 
 
Violations of this Chapter may be enforced by any applicable law; provided, however, 
that a person who is in full compliance with the Compassionate Use Act (California 
Health & Safety Code Section 11362.5) ("CUA") and the Medical Marijuana Program 
Act (California Health & Safety Code Section 11362.7 et seq.) ("MMPA") shall not be 
subject to criminal penalties and nothing in this chapter is intended, nor shall it be 
construed, to conflict with or burden any defense to criminal prosecution under the CUA 
and the MMPA. Notwithstanding the foregoing and in addition to the specific 
prohibitions set forth in this code, this chapter is intended to prohibit all activities for 
which a license from the State of California is required under the Medical Marijuana 
Regulation and Safety Act (“MMRSA”). Accordingly, the City shall not issue any 
permit, license, approval or other entitlement for any activity for which a license from the 
State of California is required under the MMRSA. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
nothing in this Chapter is intended or shall be interpreted as limiting the city's rights 
under all applicable laws, rules and regulations, including, but not limited to, its police 
powers and applicable case law, to regulate the storage, cultivation, selling, giving away, 
delivery or other distribution or dispensing of marijuana or marijuana-related products." 

  
SECTIO� 3. CEQA. This Ordinance is not a project within the meaning of Section 

15378 of the State of California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) Guidelines, because it has 
no potential for resulting in physical change in the environment, directly or indirectly. The City 
Council further finds, under Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 15061(b)(3), 
that this Ordinance is nonetheless exempt from the requirements of CEQA in that the activity is 
covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for 
causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there is 
no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the 
activity is not subject to CEQA.  
 

SECTIO� 4. Severability. If any provision or clause of this Ordinance or any application 
of it to any person, firm, organization, partnership or corporation is held invalid, such invalidity 
shall not affect other provisions of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid 
provision or application. To this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be 
severable. 
 

Item#12.              



 

{S0102174} 

 SECTIO� 5.  Effective Date. The Mayor shall sign this Ordinance and the City Clerk 
shall attest thereto and shall within fifteen (15) days of its adoption cause it, or a summary of it, 
to be published in a general circulation newspaper published and circulated in the City of 
Mission Viejo.  This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption. This 
Ordinance shall supersede Urgency Ordinance 16-316 adopted on October 12, 2016, in its 
entirety, thirty (30) days after this Ordinance’s adoption. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of October, 2016. 
 
 
             
      Frank Ury  

Mayor  
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   } 
COUNTY OF ORANGE       } ss. 
CITY OF MISSION VIEJO  } 
 
I, Karen Hamman, City Clerk of the City of Mission Viejo, California, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing Ordinance 16-316 was duly and regularly introduced by the City Council of the City 
of Mission Viejo at a regular meeting thereof on the 12th day of October, 2016 and that the same 
was passed and adopted by the following vote, to wit on October 25, 2016: 
 
 
AYES:             
NOES:             
ABSENT:        
 
 
                                                             
Karen Hamman 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                                                             
William P. Curley, III 
City Attorney 
 

Item#12.              



 



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

10/25/2016 

Prepared By: Mark Chagnon, Director of Public Works 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services/City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

MV Shuttle—ADA Complementary Paratransit Plan 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Adopt the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Complementary Paratransit Plan associated with the City’s 
fixed route local transit service (MV Shuttle). 
  
Executive Summary 

On August 23, 2016, Council approved Cooperative Agreement No. C-6-1292 with OCTA for the operation of the 
City’s new local transit service, the MV Shuttle.  The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 requires that 
public entities that operate fixed-route transportation services also provide complementary paratransit services for 
individuals whose disabilities make them unable to use the fixed route. In addition, the regulations require those 
entities to prepare and adopt an ADA Complementary Paratransit Plan to document compliance with these and 
other paratransit regulatory provisions.  
 
Per the cooperative agreement, OCTA is operating the MV Shuttle on behalf of the City and is completely 
responsible for providing the required paratransit service.  As such the proposed paratransit plan for the MV 
Shuttle is consistent with OCTA’s paratransit plans for its other fixed-route bus services.  The required paratransit 
service will be provided through the existing OCTA Access service. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $0 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 
Prog/Fund #      Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP #       Fund #      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

8-23-2016 Project V Local Transit Cooperative Agreement 
2-23-2016 Authorization to Submit Grant Applications 
  
Attachments 

Exhibit A [OCTA Cooperative Agreement No. C-6-1292 for Project V Community-Based Transit Circulators] 
Exhibit B [ADA Complementary Paratransit Plan] 
 

 

Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



Item#13.              



 

 

1 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AMERICAN WITH DISABILITIES ACT 

COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 
 
 

THE CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 

 

October 25, 2016 

 

 

 

Item#13.              



 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 
Page 

 

SECTION 1.  INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 2 
 

SECTION 2. DESCRIPTION OF EXISTING AND PROPOSED SERVICES 5 
 

SECTION 3. ADA PARATRANSIT SERVICE DESCRIPTION 9 
 

SECTION 4. ADA ELIGIBILITY DETERMINATION AND APPEALS PROCESS 13 
 

SECTION 5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PROCESS 17 
 
 
 

Table of Figures 

 
Figure 1 Demographic Information 4 

 

Figure 2 Existing Fixed Route Services Characteristics 5 
 

Figure 3 Fixed Route Service Map 6 
 

Figure 4 Proposed Shuttle Map 7 
 

Figure 5 Fare Structure 7 
 

Figure 6 ACCESS Service Area for Proposed Shuttle 10 
 

 
  List of Appendices 
 

Appendix A:   Proposed City Shuttle Schedule 

Appendix B:   Summary of Federal Guidelines 

Appendix C:   FY 2015-16 ADA-eligible Trips Data 

Appendix D:   Application for ACCESS Service 

Appendix E:   ADA Service Glossary of Terms 

Item#13.              



2 

 
 

 

ADA COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 

 

SECTION 1      INTRODUCTION & BACKGROUND 
 

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 requires that public entities that operate fixed-route 
transportation services also provide complementary paratransit services for individuals whose disabilities 
make them unable to use the fixed route.  In addition, the regulations require that those public entities 
subject to the complementary paratransit requirements develop and administer a process for determining 
if individuals who request service meet the regulatory requirements for eligibility. Finally, those entities 
are required to prepare and adopt an ADA Complementary Paratransit Plan to document its compliance 
with these and other paratransit regulatory provisions. 

 
This plan is prepared by the City of Mission Viejo (City).  Beginning in October 2016, the City will provide 
fixed route public transportation services within the City. The City’s fixed route services will be operated 
by the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA), under a cooperative agreement.  

 
The requirements of the ADA state that paratransit service must be “comparable” to the fixed route service 
levels and h o u r s  o f  availability. As defined further in regulatory guidance issued by the Department 
of Transportation, six service criteria are used to evaluate paratransit service’s compatibility to the fixed 
route. These criteria only represent the minimum service standards and therefore these thresholds can 
be exceeded if the local governing body chooses to do so. The criteria require that ADA paratransit 
service is comparable to fixed route services in terms of: 

 
 SERVICE AREA: Paratransit must be available within the same area served by the fixed route, 

specifically; service shall be made available to all origins and destinations within ¾ of a mile on each 
side of each fixed route. This includes an area within ¾ mile radius at the end of each fixed route as 
well. 

 
 HOURS AND DAYS OF SERVICE: ADA paratransit services must be available the same hours and days 

of service that fixed route is available. 

 
 RESPONSE TIME: Trips must be made available to any ADA paratransit eligible person at any 

requested time of any particular day in response to a request for service made the previous day. The 
service operator may negotiate to provide the trip within an “hour window.” Reservations must be 
taken during regular business hours the day before the trip is requested. 

 
 FARES: The public transit may not establish paratransit fares that are more than twice the fare 

that would be charged to an individual paying full fare for a trip of similar length at a similar time of 
day on the fixed route system. 

 
 TRIP RESTRICTIONS: The operator may not impose trip restrictions to prioritize trips based on trip 

purpose. 

 
 CAPACITY CONSTRAINTS: The operator may not impose capacity constraints on the amount of service 

that is provided to any eligible person. Specifically, there can be no operating practice that 
significantly limits the availability of service to ADA paratransit eligible individuals. 

 
 

Item#13.              



3 

 
 

 

ADA COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 

 
This ADA paratransit service is to be provided to all individuals who, because of their disability, are unable 
to use the fixed-route system. The criteria used to determine eligibility is also regulated by the ADA, and 
the City is required to have a documented process in place to determine if an individual qualifies for service. 

 
Any agency providing public fixed route service is required to submit a plan showing attainment of full 

compliance with the ADA no later than January 26, 1996.  Since the City did not initiate fixed-route service 
until October 2016, no plan was submitted at that time. Nonetheless, a plan is still required to show 
compliance with ADA and outline all aspects of paratransit service to ensure full compliance with the 
regulations. 

 
In an effort to ensure full compliance with the ADA requirements, the City entered into a contractual 
relationship with OCTA to provide complementary paratransit services in the City service territory on the 
City’s behalf. 

 
The following sections systematically review all of the City’s service, in concert, with OCTA rules and 

guidelines, as they relate to the provision of and compliance with all parts of the ADA statues. If service is 

determined to not comply with the regulations contained in the ADA then proper procedures and 
compliance actions will be outlined with specific benchmarks for achievement. 

 
SECTION 1: This section provides an introduction and background to the plan, and presents some 

demographic information of interest to the plan. 

 
SECTION 2: This section outlines existing and proposed fixed route services. 

 
SECTION 3: This section describes and evaluates the ADA paratransit service. 

 
SECTION 4: This section outlines the existing paratransit eligibility determination process and appeals 

process. 

 
SECTION 5: This section describes the current public participation process for input into senior and 

disabled transportation services.  

Item#13.              



4 

 
 

 

ADA COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 

 

The CITY DEMOGRAPHIC PROFILE 

 
According to the American Community Survey (ACS) by the US Census Bureau, the population of the 
City in 2010 was 93,305, making the City rank ninth in Orange County.   In 2014, the population was 
estimated to have increased to 95,246 which represents a 2.1 percent increase.  Persons over the age 
of 65 accounted for 15,119 or 15.9 percent of the City’s population, and persons with disabilities 
accounted for 8,179 or 8.6 percent. 

 
The purpose of this report is to document the City’s compliance with Title VI ADA Complementary 
Paratransit Plan. To ensure full compliance with the provisions of the Complementary Paratransit Plan, 
the City contracts for the provision of ADA paratransit services with the OCTA.   Through this cooperative 
agreement, the City is fully committed to the provision of transportation options for individuals who are 
unable to use the regular, fixed-route bus service due to functional limitations caused by a disability.  Key 
demographic statistics of the City that are relevant to the ADA Paratransit Plan are shown in Figure 1. 

 
 

Figure 1 -- CITY Service Area Demographic Information 
(2014 American Community Survey - U.S. Census Bureau) 

 

 CITY  of 
Mission Viejo 

% of  City 
Total 

Orange County 
% of County 

Total 

Total Population 95,246 N/A 3,086,331 N/A 

 
Older Adults (>65 yrs.) 15,119 15.9% 382,162 12.4% 

 
Persons in Poverty* 
(<100% of Poverty Level) 

5,032 5.3% 390,309 12.8% 

 
Persons with Disabilities* 8,179 8.6% 248,602 8.1% 

 *For whom status is determined

Item#13.              



5 

 
 

 

ADA COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 

 
 

SECTION 2 DESCRIPTION OF EXSITING AND PROPOSES SERVICES 
 
 

FIXED ROUTE SERVICE 
 
The OCTA currently operates nine fixed-routes in the City, consisting of six local routes, two express routes, 
and one rail feeder routes.  Service operating characteristics for all fixed routes serving the City are shown 
in Figure 2.  A map of the fixed route services in shown in Figure 3.  
 
Figure 2 – Existing Fixed Route Service Operating Characteristics 

       

  Days / Hours of Service    

Route Type Weekdays Weekends PEAK MIDDAY WEEKEND 

82 Local 5:00AM - 8:00PM 7:00AM - 6:45PM 70 65 N/A 

85 Local 5:30AM - 9:45PM 7:00AM - 8:00PM 60 60 N/A 

86 Local 6:15AM - 9:00PM N/A 60 60 N/A 

87 Local 6:00AM - 7:00PM 8:00AM - 6:45PM 60 60 N/A 

89 Local 4:45AM - 11:15PM 5:00AM - 9:45PM 35 35 70 

91 Local 5:30AM - 10:45PM 7:00AM - 8:00PM 35 35 45 

212 Express Express Peak Hours Only N/A N/A N/A 

216 Express Express Peak Hours Only N/A N/A N/A 

490 Rail Feeder Rail Feeder Peak Hours Only N/A N/A N/A 

Notes: 

Hours of Service within the City boundaries and rounded to nearest quarter hour 

N/A = no service available; 

Frequency listed in minutes 
 

 

  

Item#13.              



6 

 
 

 

ADA COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 

 
Figure 3 -- Existing Fixed Route Service 

 

 
 

Item#13.              



7 

 
 

 

ADA COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 

 
 
PROPOSED CITY FIXED ROUTE SERVICE 
 
The City’s proposed fixed route service consists of a circular shuttle service providing service in the central 
core of the City.  The circulator will operate from the Norman P. Murray Center on the northern end of the 
route to the Metrolink Station on the southern end of the route.  The service will focus on transporting 
residents and visitors to key activity centers, such as the Metrolink Station, Capistrano Valley High School, 
The Shops at Mission Viejo, Saddleback College, and the Norman P. Murray Center (Figure 4).  This area is 
a popular destination for the residents of the City as well as visitors.  Heavy traffic congestion is typically 
experienced by local residents and motorists visiting the area.  The shuttle will operate seven days a week 
from 6:00 AM to 6:20 PM.  A proposed schedule is provided in Appendix A.  
 
Figure 4 -- Proposed Shuttle Service 
 

 

Item#13.              



8 

 
 

 

ADA COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 

 
 

 

FARE STRUCTURE 

 
Figure 5 shows the OCTA and the proposed City’s shuttle service fare structure. 
 

Figure 5 – Fare Structure 

 

Fare Type 
Existing OCTA Fare 

Price 

Proposed Project V 

Route 182 
 

Regular Base Fare 
 

$2.00 $2.00 

Senior/Disable Base Fare   $.75 $.75 

Children Under 6 yrs.   Free Free 
 

 
 

The CITY SHUTTLE FLEET 

 
The fleet utilized for the City’s shuttle service includes two vehicles operating from OCTA’s facility in the 
City of Irvine.  U n d e r  a n  a g r e e m e n t  w i t h  O C T A ,  t h e City will receive all services required for 
the provision of the fixed route operation, including the vehicles, maintenance of the vehicles, and coach 
operators.    

 

 
  

Item#13.              



9 

 
 

 

ADA COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 

 
SECTION 3 ADA PARATRANSIT SERVICE DESCRIPTION 

 

 
The OCTA holds statutory responsibility for the planning, management, administration and operation of 

public transit services throughout Orange County. In addition to the operation of fixed route bus services, 

OCTA provides “complementary paratransit” service, which is curb-to-curb, accessible demand-responsive 

transportation pursuant to the requirements of the ADA. In Orange County, this complementary paratransit 

service is known as ACCESS. 

The ADA guarantees equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities in employment, public 

accommodations, transportation, state and local government services and telecommunications. The 

transportation provisions of the ADA focus on acquisition of accessible vehicles by public and private 

entities, requirements for complementary paratransit service by public entities operating a fixed route 

system, and provision of nondiscriminatory accessible transportation service. 

The ADA specifically mandates that each public entity operating a fixed route transit system provides 

complementary paratransit service to individuals whose functional disabilities prevent use of accessible 

fixed route bus and rail systems. The level of service for these individuals is to be comparable to the level of 

service provided to individuals without disabilities. The paratransit service is intended to be comparable to 

the fixed route system in specific listed criteria such as days and hours of service, fares, service area, 

response time, etc. It is to serve strictly defined categories of individuals with functional disabilities as 

described in this document, which reflect the ADA requirements. A summary of federal guidelines for 

eligibility is included in Appendix B. 

The ADA requires that each public entity establish a certification process for determining ADA paratransit 

eligibility for complementary paratransit service. The eligibility criteria are designed to limit ADA Paratransit 

eligibility to only those individuals whose disabilities prevent them from using accessible fixed route bus or 

rail services. Additionally, the ADA regulations specify that recertification may be required at reasonable 

intervals. 

A person is eligible for ADA service if they are unable to board or exit a fixed-route bus, get to or from a bus 

stop due to physical and/or environmental barriers, or does not understand how to ride the bus. Eligibility 

is based on a person's functional abilities and limitations due to a disability, not a specific diagnosis or 

disability. The City, through OCTA, has a formal certification process that follows ADA guidelines. To request 

an application, individuals should contact the OCTA ACCESS Eligibility Office at (714) 560-5956 or download 

the application from the OCTA website. 

 

The City contracts with OCTA, a regional transit services provider, for ACCESS services. ACCESS is OCTA’s 

shared-ride service for individuals who are unable to use the regular, fixed-route bus service because of 

functional limitations caused by a disability. These passengers must be certified by OCTA, on behalf of 

the City, to use the ACCESS system by meeting the ADA eligibility criteria. 

 

OCTA’s ACCESS service offered within the City is well utilized.  In fiscal year 2015-16, about 167,000 ADA-

eligible trips were accomplished within the City, which equates to about 14,000 monthly trips and 458 daily 

trips, as shown in Appendix C.  

 

Item#13.              



10 

 
 

 

ADA COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 

 
Figure 6 below illustrates the ADA service corridors within the context of the proposed fixed route service.  
According to OCTA’s database of ADA customers, below are trip characteristics of ADA clients who 
accomplished at least one ACCESS trip and whose origin and destination was within the ¾ mile zone of the 
proposed City shuttle: 

 There are 507 unique customers within ¾ mile of the proposed shuttle.   

 It is estimated that over a period one year in fiscal year 2015-16, 73 of the 507 customers 
accomplished at least one ACCESS trip within the ¾ mile zone. 

 There were 15 clients who took more than 10 trips in fiscal year 2015-16. 

 There were three clients considered regular clients who took more than 100 trips in fiscal year 2015-
16. 

 
FIGURE 6 – CITY’S ACCESS SERVICE AREA FOR PROPOPOSED SHUTTLE 
 

 

Item#13.              



11 

 
 

 

ADA COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 

 
 

 

This section describes service characteristics of the City’s complementary ADA paratransit system, and 
compares them to the federal requirements. Through the City’s contract with OCTA for ACCESS services, 
the City subscribes to OCTA’s eligibility standards, thus, allowing all individuals using transit services in 
Orange County, to move freely among services and only go through the certification and eligibility 
determination process once. These passengers must be certified by OCTA, on behalf of the City, to use the 
ACCESS system by meeting the ADA eligibility criteria. 

 
SERVICE AREA 

 
OCTA’s ACCESS service is fully compliant with the ADA regulations and provides excellent service to ADA-
eligible customers.   ADA service is offered as a complementary service to the fixed route service, offering 
service that matches the hours of operation of the fixed route service.   

 

SERVICE HOURS 

 

ACCESS service is available during the hours when fixed route is available, in compliance with ADA 
regulations. Therefore, ACCESS service hours fully complement the hours of service proposed for the shuttle, 
between 6:00 AM and 6:24 PM Monday through Friday.   

 
POLICIES AND FARES 

 
A personal care attendant may accompany the paratransit rider at no cost.   A Personal Care Attendant 
(PCA) is an individual who travels with an ADA eligible rider to provide assistance. This may either be 
an employee of the eligible rider, a relative, a friend, or a care provider.  ADA regulations specify that 
paratransit service must be provided to PCAs at no cost when traveling with an eligible rider. One 
companion is permitted to accompany any ACCESS eligible rider in addition to a PCA. Children under 
the age of 6 years who are ADA eligible must be accompanied by a responsible adult. That adult will 
be considered a PCA and will be allowed to ride at no charge. Trips may be taken on ACCESS for any trip 
purpose. 

 
The base fare for ACCESS service is $3.60 per passenger for each one-way trip within Orange County.   

In addition, same-day taxi service is available for customers with current ACCESS eligibility. These trips 
are scheduled the same day a customer wishes to travel at the time they wish to travel. More 
information on this service can be found on the OCTA website at www.octa.net. 

 
CAPACITY CONSTRAINTS 

 
For ADA eligible persons, there are no capacity constraints, meaning there is no limitation on the number 
of trips per day or trips per person that can be made on ACCESS. ACCESS on-time performance is very 
good, and travel times are comparable to fixed route trips. For ADA eligible persons, there are no trip 
denials, turndowns, or waiting lists. All trip requests are provided as agreed upon during the reservation 
process. 

 
  

Item#13.              



12 

 
 

 

ADA COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 

 
RESPONSE TIME 

 
Currently, service policies allow trip requests to be made the day before the service is needed by contacting 
OCTA between the times of 7:00 AM and 5:00 PM Monday through Friday, and 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM on 
Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays. Trips may be requested up to three days in advance.  

 
 

ACCESS service is provided within a ¾ mile of, and during similar hours as, OCTA’s regular fixed route service.  

ACCESS scheduling guidelines include scheduling trips within 60 minutes of the requested time, picking up 

customers within a quoted 30 minute pick-up window.   

TRAVEL TIME 

OCTA’s ACCESS service is comparable to the level of service and ride time provided on OCTA’s fixed route 
as required by the Department of Transportation’s (DOT) Rules and Regulations, 37.121.  When planning a 
trip, individuals should be aware that the ride will be shared with other ACCESS customers, and travel time 
is dependent on the number and time passengers are picked up or dropped off. 

  

Item#13.              



13 

 
 

 

ADA COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 

 

Section 4 ADA ELIGIBILITY DETERMINATION AND APPEALS PROCESS 

Eligibility is determined by three factors: 

 Individual’s ability to get to/from a bus stop 

 Individual’s ability to board/exit the bus 

 Individual’s cognitive ability to navigate the regular bus system 

Operational issues not used to determine eligibility, include:  

 Age 

 Distance 

 Overcrowded buses 

 Weather conditions 

 Lack of bus service to an area 

Operation issues are not considered in the eligibility process.  These are issues that affect any individual, 
whether they suffer from a disability or not.  The individual’s disability (ies) and how it affect their functional 
ability to use regular bus service is the only criterion used in determining eligibility.  

ACCESS eligibility may be granted for up to five years.  Customers wishing to continue ACCESS service must 
reapply and complete the eligibility process prior to their eligibility expiration data in order to prevent a 
lapse in ACCESS service.     

Certification Process 

The certification process consists of a completed application and a one hour in-person functional 
assessment.  If using a mobility device, it is recommended that the individual bring the device to the 
interview.  ACCESS service may be made available to and from the in-person functional assessment upon 
request.  Including travel, the entire assessment process may take from 4 to 5 hours.  Photo ID is needed to 
verify individuals for the in-person assessment. 

Individuals are notified by mail regarding their eligibility determination within 21 calendar days after the 
functional assessment is conducted.  IF found to be eligible for ACCESS service, individuals will receive an 
ACCESS identification number and a Rider’s Guide describing the ACCESS service and booking process in 
more detail.   

To apply for OCTA Paratransit Service, call the OCTA ACCESS Eligibility Contractor to schedule your in-
person assessment at (714) 560-5956 ext. 2. TDD (714) 560-5474 or review the OCTA website at 
www.octa.net.  

A copy of the application for ACCESS service is included as Appendix D. 

 

OCTA CATEGORIES OF ELIGIBILITY 

There are many reasons why an individual may or may not be able to use accessible fixed route bus or rail 
services.  In addition, there may be times when an individual may be able to use accessible fixed route bus 
or rail services, and other times when they cannot.  Recognizing this, OCTA has four categories of ADA 

Item#13.              



14 

 
 

 

ADA COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 

paratransit eligibility: Unrestricted, Trip-by-Trip, Conditional, and Temporary.  In addition, applicants may 
be denied eligibility or determined to be ineligible.  These categories are described below: 

a. Unrestricted.  Individuals, who are physically or cognitively unable to ever independently board, 
ride or disembark from the public bus or rail service.  An example would be an individual who uses 
a wheelchair who is unable to maneuver their wheelchair by themselves. 

 

b. Trip-by-Trip.  An individual may utilize ACCESS service for those trips in which their disability, due to 
physical or environmental barriers, prevents them from getting to or from the bus or rail stop or 
loading location or from boarding or disembarking from the fixed route bus or rail service.  An 
example is an individual who uses a wheelchair and the sidewalks that he/she needs to use to get 
to/from the bus stops for a specific trip do not have curb cuts, thus preventing him/her from using 
the fixed route bus for this trip. 

 

c. Conditional.  Individuals may use ACCESS service for those trips when the episodic nature of their 
disability prevents them from making the trip on the public fixed route bus or rail.  An example 
would be an individual with a disability which allows them to function well at times and less well at 
other times – night blindness, extreme sensitivity to cold or heat, and kidney dialysis are examples 
of conditions which could result in Conditional eligibility.  During those days when the individual is 
not able to function well, he/she would be unable to use the fixed route bus and, therefore, would 
be eligible to use ACCESS. 

 

d. Temporary.  ADA eligibility may be granted to individuals whose condition or functional limitations 
are expected to improve to the point that they would be able to utilize accessible fixed route 
services for all their trips as well as to individuals who disability condition may be permanent but 
whose travel abilities may change with training or therapy.  In these cases, the individual will be 
given temporary eligibility.  Examples might be an individual with a medical condition or injury from 
which they are expected to fully recover or a person with a visual impairment who is attending 
mobility/orientation training which may train them sufficiently to use the fixed route bus services.  
Granting temporary eligibility does not necessarily mean that the recipient will eventually be 
denied, but that a more accurate eligibility determination can be made once training/ therapy is 
completed. 
 

e. Denied.  Individuals whose disability and/or functional abilities do not prevent them from using the 
accessible fixed route bus services will be denied ADA paratransit eligibility. 
 

f. Incomplete.  An individual may be deemed to be ineligible to use ADA paratransit services if they 
do not meet the Authority’s minimum age or if their application is withdrawn for failure to complete 
the necessary information and/or certification process. 

 

Children who are five years of age or younger and, with the assistance of an adult, are able to board, ride 
and disembark from an accessible fixed route bus will be denied ADA paratransit eligibility.  Because OCTA’s 
child protection policy requires children under the age of six to be accompanied by an adult on the fixed 
route bus, eligibility for children of that age is based on their ability to travel with the assistance of an adult. 
 

  

Item#13.              



15 

 
 

 

ADA COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 

 
ELIGIBILITY APPEALS PROCESS 
 
Purpose 
The purpose of this policy is to comply with the ADA Certification Eligibility Appeals Board process and 

applies to the paratransit service operated by the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA). The ADA 

requires that an eligibility appeals process be established by each operator of complementary paratransit 

service. The eligibility appeals process is intended to provide an applicant who disagrees with the initial 

eligibility determination the opportunity to have the determination reviewed by official(s) other than the 

person who originally determined his/her eligibility. 

Requesting an Eligibility Appeal 

An applicant wishing to appeal his/her initial eligibility determination must submit a written letter of appeal 

within 60 days of receiving the first eligibility notification letter. 

All eligibility notification letters include a Request for Appeal form to be returned with the applicant’s appeal 

letter, with the exception of applicants receiving unrestricted eligibility. The appeal form will ask if 

communication is required in an alternative format (Spanish, Braille or DVD audio). Visually impaired 

applicants receive a telephone call in addition to written notification. 

If the eligibility appeal request is received by the Authority after the 60 day appeal period has elapsed, the 

eligibility determination will remain in place. Applicants will be notified by certified mail if the appeal 

request is received after the 60 day appeal period. Visually impaired applicants will receive a telephone call 

in addition to written notification. 

Notification of Appeal Hearing 

Upon receiving an appeal request within the required 60 days, OCTA will notify the applicant in writing of 

the next two scheduled appeals board dates. Visually impaired applicants will receive a phone call in 

addition to written notification. The letter will ask if any reasonable accommodations are needed for the 

appeal hearing. The applicant may choose one of the two dates for his/her hearing. 

The applicant will be informed of the date, time and location of the appeals board hearing and have the 

opportunity to come before the appeals board personally to present written and oral information. All 

relevant OCTA records will be made available to the applicant and the appeals board. The applicant may 

bring a representative, such as someone from an advocacy organization, an attorney, etc., to speak on 

his/her behalf if desired. Appeals shall follow ADA paratransit eligibility procedures and classification 

guidelines. All determinations by an Appeals Specialists shall be consistent with these guidelines. 

Appeals Board Hearing 

The appeals board will convene as scheduled with all pertinent parties present and the appeal hearing will 

be conducted using the following guidelines: 

 Introduction of all persons present 

 Explanation of the appeals policy 

 Brief overview of the criteria 

 Summary of initial eligibility determination 

Item#13.              



16 

 
 

 

ADA COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 

 Opportunity for the applicant and/or his/her representative to provide additional information or 
dispute the initial finding 

 Opportunity for the appeals board members to ask questions 

 Restatement of the appeal policy to provide the applicant with a clear understanding of what will 
happen following the hearing 

After the appeal hearing has been conducted, the appeals board will review all information and make a final 

determination. The majority decision may reaffirm, change or overturn the initial eligibility determination. 

The decision by the appeals board shall be made within 30 days from the appeal hearing. If the final 

determination is not made within the 30-day period following the appeal hearing, presumptive eligibility is 

granted to the individual and will continue until a final determination is made and the applicant is notified 

Notification of Appeals Board Determination 

The applicant shall be notified of the appeal decision by certified mail. Visually impaired applicants will 

receive a telephone call in addition to written notification. The letter will include specific reasons for the 

decision by the appeals board. The decision of the appeals board will be final. OCTA staff encourages anyone 

whose functional capabilities change to reapply for eligibility and/or inform OCTA of any changes in his/her 

condition. 

Appeals Board 

The appeal will be heard by an objective three-board consisting of the following members: 

1. OCTA’s manager of operations or his/her designee. 

2. Two members from OCTA’s Special Needs in Transit Committee, including the committee chairman 
or his/her committee designee. 

A glossary of terms is included in Appendix E. 

 

  

Item#13.              



17 

 
 

 

ADA COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 

 

SECTION 5 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PROCESS 

 

ADA  requirements specify this plan should be developed in consultation with members of the disability 
community. In Orange County, there is a high representation from the disabled community including 
individuals and agencies in the local area that provide services for the disabled. 
 
COMPLAINT RESOLUTION AND CUSTOMER SERVICE PROCEDURES 

 
It is the policy of the City to employ its best efforts to ensure that all programs, service, activities and 
benefits are implemented without discrimination.  However, in those cases where a  complaint must be 
filed due to service provision issues or any other customer service matter, the City follows complaint 
investigation and format procedures which are in keeping with Title VI requirements.  
 
ADA customers may submit comments and complaints to either OCTA or the City.  Contact information is 
shown below: 

OCTA’s Customer Relations Department: 714-636-7433 

Mission Viejo City Clerk’s Office: 949-470-3052 

  

Item#13.              



18 

 
 

 

ADA COMPLEMENTARY PARATRANSIT PLAN 

 

APPENDICES 

List of Appendices 
 

Appendix A:   Proposed City Shuttle Schedule 

Appendix B:   Summary of Federal Guidelines 

Appendix C:   FY 2015-16 ADA-eligible Trips Data 

Appendix D:   Application for ACCESS Service 

Appendix E:   ADA Service Glossary of Terms 

 

Item#13.              



Project V 
Mission Viejo - Route 182

Monday - Friday Monday - Friday
Northbound to: Mission Viejo Southbound to: Lag.Niguel/M.V. Metrolink Station

L
a
g

. 
N

ig
u

e
l/
M

.V
. 

M
e

tr
o

li
n

k
 S

ta
ti

o
n

C
a
p

is
tr

a
n

o
 V

a
ll
e
y

 

H
S

S
a
d

d
le

b
a
c
k
 

C
o

ll
e
g

e

F
e
li
p

e
 &

 L
a
 P

a
z

M
u

rr
a
y
 C

o
m

m
 C

tr

M
u

rr
a
y
 C

o
m

m
 C

tr

F
e
li
p

e
 &

 L
a
 P

a
z

S
a
d

d
le

b
a
c
k
 

C
o

ll
e
g

e

C
a
p

is
tr

a
n

o
 V

a
ll
e
y

 

H
S

L
a
g

. 
N

ig
u

e
l/
M

.V
. 

M
e

tr
o

li
n

k
 S

ta
ti

o
n

7:04 ........ 7:13 7:36 7:43 S 6:00 6:06 ..... 6:35 6:49

NS 7:49 ........ 7:58 8:21 8:28 S 6:55 7:01 7:25 7:35 .......

S ........ 7:52 7:58 8:21 8:28 NS 7:00 7:06 7:30 ...... 7:39

8:34 ........ 8:43 9:06 9:13 7:45 7:51 8:15 ...... 8:24

9:19 ........ 9:28 9:51 9:58 8:30 8:36 9:00 ...... 9:09

10:04 ........ 10:13 10:36 10:43 9:15 9:21 9:45 ...... 9:54

10:49 ........ 10:58 11:21 11:28 10:00 10:06 10:30 ...... 10:39

11:34 ........ 11:43 12:06 12:13 10:45 10:51 11:15 ...... 11:24

12:19 ........ 12:28 12:51 12:58 11:30 11:36 12:00 ...... 12:09

1:04 ........ 1:13 1:36 1:43 12:15 12:21 12:45 ...... 12:54

2:04 ........ 2:13 2:36 2:43 1:00 1:06 1:30 ...... 1:39

NS 2:45 ........ 2:54 3:17 3:24 1:45 1:51 2:15 ...... 2:24

S 2:45 2:59 3:09 3:32 3:39 2:45 2:51 3:15 3:24

3:39 3:48 4:11 4:18 3:45 3:51 4:15 ...... 4:24

4:34 ........ 4:43 5:06 5:13 4:20 4:26 4:50 ...... 4:59

5:04 ........ 5:13 5:36 5:43 5:15 5:21 5:45 ...... 5:54

6:00 ........ 6:09 ........ ...... 5:45 5:51 6:15 ...... 6:24

 S = Operates on days Capistrano Valley High School is in session.

NS = Operates on days Capistrano Valley High School is not in session.

APPENDIX A

Item#13.              



APPENDIX B 

 

SUMMARY OF FEDEDAL ADA REGULATIONS 
 

Subpart F Paratransit as A Complement to Fixed Route Services 
Paratransit Eligibility – Standards 
(e)  The following individuals are ADA paratransit eligible: 

(1) Any individual with a disability who is unable, as the result of a physical or 
mental impairment (including a vision impairment), and without the assistance 
of another individual (except the operator of a wheelchair lift or other boarding 
assistance device), to board, ride, or disembark from any vehicle on the 
system which is readily accessible to and usable by individuals with 
disabilities. 

(2) Any individual with a disability who needs the assistance of a wheelchair lift or 
other boarding assistance device and is able, with such assistance, to 
aboard, ride and disembark from any vehicle which is readily accessible to 
and usable by individuals with disabilities if the individual wants to travel on a 
route on the system at a time, or within a reasonable period of such time, 
when such a vehicle is not being used to provide designated public 
transportation on the route. 

 
(i) An individual is eligible under this paragraph with respect to travel 

on an otherwise accessible route on which the boarding or 
disembarking location which the individual would use is one at 
which boarding or disembarking from the vehicle is precluded as 
provided in 37.167(g) of this Part. 

 
(ii) An individual using a common wheelchair is eligible under this 

paragraph if the individual’s wheelchair cannot be accommodated 
on an existing vehicle (e.g., because the vehicle’s lift does not meet 
the standards of Part 38 of this title), even if that vehicle is 
accessible to other individuals with disabilities and their mobility 
wheelchairs. 

 
(iii) With respect to rail systems, an individual is eligible under this 

paragraph if the individual could use an accessible rail system, but  
(A) there is not yet an accessible car per train on the system, or 
(B) key stations have not yet been made accessible. 

 
(3) Any individual with a disability who has a specific impairment-related 

condition which prevents such individual from traveling a boarding location or 
from a disembarking location on such system. 

 
(i) Only specific impairment-related condition, which prevents the 

individual from traveling to a boarding location or from a 
disembarking location is a basis for eligibility under this paragraph.  
A condition which makes traveling to boarding location or from a 

Item#13.              



disembarking location more difficult for a person with a specific 
impairment-related condition that for an individual who does not 
have the condition, but does not prevent the travel, is not a basis 
for eligibility under this paragraph. 

 
(ii) Architectural barriers not under the control of the public entity 

providing fixed route service and environmental barriers (e.g., 
distance, terrain, weather) do not standing alone, form a basis for 
eligibility under this paragraph.  The interaction of such barriers with 
an individual’s specific impairment-related condition may form a 
basis eligibility under this paragraph, if the effect is to prevent the 
individual from traveling to a boarding location or from a 
disembarking location. 

Item#13.              



OC ACCESS ADA Trips for the City of Mission Viejo from July 2015 through June 2016

ADA Trips Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total
 Mon. 

Avg. 

 Daily 

Avg. 

Primary Provider

Pick-Up 3,976     3,714     3,809     4,078     3,513     3,605     3,550     3,744     4,163     3,994     4,041     4,058     46,245     3,854      151        

Drop-Off 4,016     3,851     4,006     4,180     3,598     3,717     3,672     3,775     4,257     4,071     4,079     4,162     47,384     3,949      154        

Both 4,434     4,112     4,310     4,467     3,825     4,104     4,183     4,357     4,682     4,267     4,214     4,268     51,223     4,269      167        

Total 12,426   11,677   12,125   12,725   10,936   11,426   11,405   11,876   13,102   12,332   12,334   12,488   144,852   12,071    472        

Supplemental Provider

Pick-Up 723        740        874        923        717        634        759        796        868        966        1,016     911        9,927       827          27          

Drop-Off 709        695        804        958        783        698        710        852        901        991        990        959        10,050     838          28          

Both 182        206        201        241        190        158        197        159        169        212        196        194        2,305       192          6            

Total 1,614     1,641     1,879     2,122     1,690     1,490     1,666     1,807     1,938     2,169     2,202     2,064     22,282     1,857      61          

Total OC ACCESS

Pick-Up 4,699     4,454     4,683     5,001     4,230     4,239     4,309     4,540     5,031     4,960     5,057     4,969     56,172     4,681      154        

Drop-Off 4,725     4,546     4,810     5,138     4,381     4,415     4,382     4,627     5,158     5,062     5,069     5,121     57,434     4,786      157        

Both 4,616     4,318     4,511     4,708     4,015     4,262     4,380     4,516     4,851     4,479     4,410     4,462     53,528     4,461      147        

Total 14,040   13,318   14,004   14,847   12,626   12,916   13,071   13,683   15,040   14,501   14,536   14,552   167,134   13,928    458        

APPENDIX C

Item#13.              



Revised January 2016 

APPENDIX D 

OCTA ADA PARATRANSIT APPLICATION 
DO NOT MAIL 

Please complete the application and call (714) 560-5956 ext 2 
to schedule your in-person assessment. TDD (714) 560-5474 

              Notification of Eligibility within 21 calendar days of in-person assessment 
1.  PERSONAL INFORMATION – please print clearly 
 
Last Name: __________________  First: __________________  Middle Initial: ____ 

□ Female □ Male  Date of Birth -- 
*Social Security  (Last 4 digits only) 
*The Federal Act of 1974 requires that disclosure of your social security number is voluntary.  If given, it will be used for identification purposes only. 

Home Address 

Street _____________________Apt #___  City____________  State ____  Zip ______ 
 
Day Phone (____) ______-_________Evening Phone(____) ______-_________ 

TDD □ Yes □ No 

Mailing Address (If different from above) 

Street _____________________Apt # ___City____________  State ____  Zip ______ 
 

Emergency Contact 

Name: _________________________ Relationship:______________________  
Day Phone (____) ______-__________Evening Phone(____) ______-__________ 

Do you require information in an alternate format?  □ Yes □ No 

If yes, please indicate:  □ Braille □ Large Print □ Other _______________ 

Your primary language: □ English □ Spanish  □ Other _______________ 

 
2.  MOBILITY INFORMATION – please print clearly 
What is your disability? __________________________________________________ 
Which of the following mobility aids or equipment do you use? 

□ Power wheelchair  □ Manual wheelchair  □ Scooter 

□ Crutches   □ Cane    □ Walker 

□ Oxygen Tank   □ Service Animal  □ Other _______________ 

 
Signature __________________________________ Date __________________ 

 
You must bring a valid photo identification and this completed ADA Paratransit 

Service application to your In-Person assessment appointment 

Item#13.              



APPENDIX E 
 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 
As used throughout the Scope of Work, Figures, and Attachments, the following terms shall have the meanings 
set forth below: 
 
Accessible – A general term that has come to mean “usable by a person with a disability.” Can refer to 
equipment (a passenger lift), a service (calling out bus stops), or communication formats (TDD phones). 
 
ADA ACCESS Service – ACCESS service is the OCTA's complementary paratransit service element which 
began operating in October 1993.  ACCESS is a curb-to-curb, fully-accessible service for travel in Orange 
County for persons who have been certified as eligible. 
 
ADA Paratransit – Curb-to-curb public transportation service available to individuals whose disabilities prevent 
the use of fixed route transit services. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) – Federal civil rights legislation which mandates accessibility 
for people with disabilities.  Included is a requirement that all public transit agencies operating fixed route bus 
service provide complementary paratransit service to persons functionally unable to use accessible fixed route 
systems. 
 
Applicants – Persons who are applying for certification to use ADA paratransit service. 
 
OCTA – OCTA shall signify the Orange County Transportation OCTA (Authority). 
 
Certification – Term that generally refers to the award of eligibility status to an applicant who has applied to 
use ADA paratransit service. 
 
Determination – Evaluation of how an applicant’s disability affects his/her use of public transportation and 
resulting in a classification of the applicant into an ADA eligibility category. 
 
Eligibility Category – As defined by OCTA, four categories which describe the situations under which an 
individual is determined eligible and may ride ADA paratransit services. As a result of the certification process, 
applicants may also be Denied or Ineligible. [See Attachment No. 2] 
  
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) – A branch of the U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT) 
established to improve transportation throughout the nation.  The FTA provides funding and assistance to 
regional transportation agencies, among various other programs. 
 
Functional Eligibility – Determination of ADA paratransit eligibility based upon the passenger’s physical 
and/or cognitive ability to use accessible fixed route services. 
Holidays – The official OCTA holidays are: New Year’s Day; Memorial Day; Independence Day; Labor Day; 
Thanksgiving Day; and Christmas Day. In addition, the OCTA may direct a reduced level of services on 
unofficial holidays and during holiday periods. 
 
Presumptive Eligibility – Unrestricted eligibility to use ADA paratransit services pending completion of an 
applicant’s certification. See “21-Day Rule.” 
 
Service Contractor – The OCTA’s vendor for management and operation of ADA ACCESS services. 
 
21-Day Rule – ADA Regulations require that if, by a date 21 days following the submission of a complete 
application, the entity has not made a determination of eligibility, the applicant shall be treated as eligible and 
provided paratransit service until and unless the entity denies the application. [49 CFR 37 Section 37.125(c)] 

Item#13.              



 



 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

10/25/2016 

Prepared By: Keith Rattay, Director of Public Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Alicia Parkway Slope Renovation 
 
 
Recommended Action 

(1) Approve Contract Amendment #17 in the amount of $10,000 to West Coast Arborist for additional 
trimming and selected removal of trees along Alicia Parkway in the next phase of slopes renovations; (2) 
approve  Contract Amendment #3 in the amount of $100,000 to WM Vandergeest Landscape Care Inc., along 
Alicia Parkway in the next phase of slope renovations; (3) approve Contract Amendment #3 in the amount of 
$110,000 to AC Landscape for irrigation retrofits and controller installation and (4) adopt Resolution 16-XX  
Amending the Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Operating Budget To Appropriate General Fund Reserves For Slope 
Renovations Along Alicia Parkway. 
  
Executive Summary 
 

At the October 12, 2016, City Council meeting the City Council approved the close out of the FY 15/16 operating 
budget.  As part of the action City Council directed staff to return to Council with a proposal to spend a portion of 
the budget surplus on the next phases of slope renovations.  During the budget preparation in January 2015, City 
Staff identified Alicia Parkway as the next arterial to receive slope renovation efforts.  Additionally, due to the 
drought, staff had recommended that the renovation efforts begin in areas along the street that are currently 
maintained with reclaimed water.  Staff is recommending that the renovation efforts begin at the Marguerite/Alicia 
Parkway intersection.  City Staff is recommending that slopes be renovated on the North and South side of the 
street from Marguerite Parkway west to Via Aurora, approximately 1 acre on each side for a total of 2 acres.  Plus 
along Alicia Parkway on the south from Via Aurora to Via Burgos for a total of 2 acres, for a total of 
approximately  4 acres. 
 
The estimated cost for the proposed slope renovation is $400,000 and requires the approval of three contract 
amendments, including $10,000 to West Coast Arborist for additional tree trimming and removal along this 
stretch; $100,000 to WM Vandergeest Landscape Care Inc. for clear and grubbing of the slope and planting of all 
trees and shrubs;  $110,000 to AC Landscape for irrigation retrofits and installation of new controllers; with the 
balance of $180,000 needed for the purchase of plant material and irrigation supplies including controllers and 
related irrigation equipment.  Remaining funds will be used to replace additional irrigation controllers in contract 
area 2 along Alicia Parkway. 
 

Landscape renovation will begin in the spring of 2017 with completion by summer 2017.   
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

        
Attachments 

Item#14.              



 
 

Exhibit A - Amendment #17 to West Coast Arborist 
Exhibit B - Amendment #3 to WM Vandergeest Landscape Care Inc., 
Exhibit C - Amendment #3 to AC Landscape 
Exhibit D - Resolution 16-xx  
Exhibit E - Map 
 

 
 

Item#14.              



Exhibit A 
 

G:/WP/Commons/Fin/Forms/ChangeOrder 

 
CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 

 

Maintenance Contract Amendment 
 

 
 
Effective Date of this Amendment:  _10/25/2016_______   Amendment # ____17______ 
Contract Number:  A07-21P______________________   Contract Date: 07/01/2007___ 
Contractor:  _West Coast Arborists, Inc.____    
Contract Title or Description:  _Various tree pruning and removal services____________ (“Agreement”) 
Account Code(s) this Amendment:  _549-101-6561___ City Council Meeting Date: October 25, 2016 
 
City and Contractor desire to make certain modifications to the contract Agreement dated _07/01/2007_as set forth in 
this 17th Amendment.  The parties agree that Section _4_ of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:  
  

1. The maximum contract amount is hereby revised to  ($1,192,158.00) and changes are shown as follows: 
 
 
Original Contract Amount :  $ _1,182,158.00_____________  FY 15/16             FY 16/17 
 
Identify dollar amounts by fiscal year for two-year contracts …..   $_591,079.00____  $ _591,079.00____ 

 
Original purchase order number(s) : ………………………..   PO# 21600087      PO# 21700050___ 
 
Original purchase order amount(s) : ………………………..   $ _591,079.00____  $   591,079.00 ____  

 
Authorized purchase order changes to date : ……………….  $ _�/A________  $ ___ N/A_______ 

                     
Revised purchase order total : ………………………….…...  $ _591,079.00____  $ _591,079.00____  

   
This Amendment (increase or decrease to purchase order) : . . $ _N/A_________  $   10,000.00   
                   

Revised purchase order total : . …………………………….. $ _591,079.00____  $ 601,079.00_____ 
 

Revised Contract Amount :  $ _1,192,158.00_________ 

 
2. All work done under this Amendment shall be in strict conformance to the project contract documents and all 

applicable sections therein.   
3. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this _17th_ Amendment, all other terms and provisions of the 

contract Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

 
By:  ________________________________________ By:  _________________________________________  
                Patrick Mahoney, President Date  Dennis Wilberg/City Manager  Date     
    
   Attest: _______________________________________ 
By:  ___________________________________  By: Karen Hamman, City Clerk  Date 
 Richard Mahoney, Vice President Date     
   Approved as to Form: 
 
    By: _________________________________________ 

    William P. Curley, City Attorney  Date 
 

 

Item#14.              



Exhibit B 
 

Rev 12/13 
 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
 

Maintenance Contract Amendment 
 

 
 

Effective Date of this Amendment:  10/25/2016   Amendment # 3  
Contract Number:  A15-10       Contract Date: July 1, 2015   
Contractor:  WM Vandergeest Landscape Care Inc.  
Contract Title or Description:  Annual Routine Monthly Landscape and Facility Maintenance, Contract Area 2 
(“Agreement”) 
Account Code(s) this Amendment: 548101-6560   City Council Meeting Date: October 25, 2016 

City and Contractor desire to make certain modifications to the contract Agreement dated July 1, 2015 as set forth in 
this 3rd Amendment.  The parties agree that Section 4 of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:   

1. The maximum contract amount is hereby revised to  One Million Two Hundred Forty Thousand Four Hundred 
Fifty Dollars and Eighty Cents ($1,240,450.80) and changes are shown as follows: 

 
Original Contract Amount :  $ 1,095,450.80     FY 15/16       FY 16/17 
 
Identify dollar amounts by fiscal year for two-year contracts …..   $ 547,725.40   $ 547,725.40 

 
Original purchase order number(s) : ………………………..   PO# 21600012      PO# 21700004 
 
Original purchase order amount(s) : ………………………..   $ 547,725.40   $ 547,725.40_   

 
Authorized purchase order changes to date : ……………….  $ 30,000.00    $  �/A   

                     
Revised purchase order total : ………………………….…...  $ 577,725.40    $ 547,725.40_   

  
This Amendment (increase or decrease to purchase order) : . . $ 15,000.00    $ 100,000.00_     
                    

Revised purchase order total : . …………………………….. $ 592,725.40    $ 647,725.40_ 

Revised Contract Amount :  $1,240,450.80   

 
2. All work done under this Amendment shall be in strict conformance to the project contract documents and all 

applicable sections therein.   

3. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this 3rd Amendment, all other terms and provisions of the contract 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
By:  _________________________________________ By: _________________________________________ 
                Allan Curr/President  Date  Dennis Wilberg/City Manager  Date 
 
                 Attest: ____________________________________ 
    By: Karen Hamman, City Clerk  Date 
 
By:  ________________________________________ Approved as to Form: 
 Chris Curr/Vice-President Date      
             
                    By: _________________________________________ 

    William P. Curley, City Attorney Date 
   
 

Item#14.              



Exhibit C 
 

Rev 12/13 
 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
 

Maintenance Contract Amendment 
 
 
 

Effective Date of this Amendment:  10/25/2016   Amendment # 3   
Contract Number:  A15-18       Contract Date: July 1, 2015   
Contractor:  A.C. Landscape Inc.  
Contract Title or Description:  Annual Technical Irrigation Services  (“Agreement”) 
Account Code(s) this Amendment: 547101-6561/548101-6561  City Council Meeting Date: October 25, 2016 
 
City and Contractor desire to make certain modifications to the contract Agreement dated July 1, 2015 as set forth in 
this 3rd Amendment.  The parties agree that Section 4 of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:   

1. The maximum contract amount is hereby revised to Six Hundred Four Thousand Dollars ($604,000.00) and 
changes are shown as follows: 

 
 
Original Contract Amount :  $ 514,000.00     FY 15/16       FY 16/17 
 
Identify dollar amounts by fiscal year for two-year contracts …..   $ 257,000.00   $ 257,000.00 

 
Original purchase order number(s) : ………………………..   PO# 21600028      PO# 21700019 
 
Original purchase order amount(s) : ………………………..   $ 257,000.00   $ 257,000.00    

 
Authorized purchase order changes to date : ……………….  $ 15,120.00    $  �/A   

                     
Revised purchase order total : ………………………….…...  $ 272,120.00    $  N/A    

   
This Amendment (increase or decrease to purchase order) : . . $ 14,880.00   $ 110,000.00     
                    

Revised purchase order total : . …………………………….. $ 287,000.00    $ 367,000.00 
 

Revised Contract Amount :  $ 654,000.00 

 
2. All work done under this Amendment shall be in strict conformance to the project contract documents and all 

applicable sections therein.   

3. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this 3rd Amendment, all other terms and provisions of the contract 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 
By:  ________________________________________ By:  _________________________________________  
                Dan Reynolds, Sole Owner Date  Dennis Wilberg/City Manager  Date     
    
   Attest: _______________________________________ 
By:  ___________________________________  By: Karen Hamman, City Clerk  Date 
 Dan Reynolds, President Date     
   Approved as to Form: 
 
    By: _________________________________________ 

    William P. Curley, City Attorney  Date 
 

Item#14.              



Exhibit D 
RESOLUTION No 16-XX 

A  RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSION VIEJO  
AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2016/2017 OPERATING BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE 
GENERAL FUND RESERVES FOR SLOPE RENOVATIONS ALONG ALICIA PARKWAY 

 
 

WHEREAS, at the October 12, 2016 City Council Meeting, the City Council closed out Fiscal Year 
2015/2016 budget year with a budget surplus; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council requested City Staff to come back with a plan to appropriate funds to begin 

the rehabilitation of the slopes along Alicia Parkway; and 
  
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the Fiscal Year 2016/2017 operating budget to appropriate funds in 

the Medians and Parkways Maintenance and Urban  Forestry Programs of the Operating Budget to accomplish the 
slope rehabilitation. 

 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSION VIEJO HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 SECTION 1. That Operating Budget of Fiscal Year 2016/2017 has been amended by appropriating an 
additional $400,000 to the following budget programs: 
 

Fund Program Object Amount 
101 548 6560 $100,000 
101 548 6561 $110,000 
101 548 7120 $180,000 
101 549 6561 $10,000 

 
 SECTION 2.  The City Clerk shall certify the adoption of this resolution. 
 
 

  PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of October, 2016. 
 
  
      _________________________________________ 
      Frank Ury 
      Mayor 
 

  I, Karen Hamman, City Clerk of the City of Mission Viejo hereby certify that the foregoing  
resolution was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Mission Viejo at a regular meeting thereof, held on 
the 25th day of October, 2016 by the following vote of Council: 
 

 AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Karen Hamman 
City Clerk 

Item#14.              



Item#14.              



 



 
 
 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

October 25, 2016 

Prepared By:  Jennifer Wilson, Senior Executive Assistant  
 
Submitted By:  Dennis Wilberg, City Manager   
 
Agenda Title 
 
Council Member Reports of Events and Activities Attended 
 
  
Recommended Action 
 
Receive reports. 
  
Executive Summary 
 
AB 1234, the State law regarding expense reimbursements, requires regular reporting in a public 
meeting of activities and events attended by members of City legislative bodies. The law requires such 
reports be made at the next regular meeting following attendance at the event. (Government Code 
Section 53232.3(d).) 
 
Following are brief written reports of events attended by Council members at City expense since the last 
City Council meeting, as taken from Councilmember calendars.  Council members may wish to elaborate 
or add additional information at the meeting. 
 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $ n/a 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:     (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #      Category:  Pers.     Optg.     Cap.       -or-   CIP#      Fund# 
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 
 
n/a 
   
Attachments 
  
Reports of Events and Activities Attended 
 

 

 

Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#              



 



CC-001C 
  

City of Mission Viejo 
Agenda Report to City Council 

 
 
 
Council Meeting Date: October 25, 2016 
 
City Council Member: Cathy Schlicht  
 
Agenda Title:  Civic Core Area Vision Plan Process:  Concerns as to Process and 

Scope of Land-Use Planning and Regulations   
 
Recommended Action:  Reject The Kosmont Opportunity Sites until the council answers 

policy questions on Mixed-Use Housing, Zoning Incentives, 
Financial Incentives and CEQA Process Review    

 
 
Discussion 
 
The City of Mission Viejo has been recognized as the 16th wealthiest city in the nation. 
 
This recognition was not an accident. 
 
Mission Viejo was conceived, designed and built into a world class it is today because 
of the careful implementation and commitment to long range plans established by the 
Mission Viejo Company. 
 
An attractive environment is what brought us here, from the tree lined streets to the 
specially designed Mission Bell street lights,  all adding to our sense of pride. 
 
Slogans from the Library’s History website include: 
 
 Mission Viejo:  a world class community; 
 The California Promise – live it in Mission Viejo; 
 Mission Viejo:  Cradle of the good life in South Orange County; 
 Mission Viejo:  an environment both physical and spiritual that makes people feel                             
                  good whenever they step out the door. 
 
Fifty years later, we now need to guard and protect our Mission Viejo unique lifestyle 
from outside groups and organizations posing as advocates for residents.  These 
groups  and organizations masquerade as champions for the resident and the taxpayer, 
but they are all working as lobbyists – using each other’s power base to push through 
programs and agendas for its own special interest members,  mostly working against 
the values of our residents.   
 

Item#20.              



CC-001C 
  

We cannot allow this council to be influenced by the agendas of the Builders Industry 
Association (BIA-OC), the Orange County Business Council (OCBC) and the Orange 
County Association of Realtors (OCAR) to infill our community with “workforce housing”. 
 
In January 2015, the spokesman for the South Orange County Chamber of 
Commerce/Economic Coalition opening comments were:   “We are anti-nymby and we 
are here to infill your cities.” 
 
Adding mixed-use housing  to infill our commercial centers will both destroy and violate 
the California Promise that brought us here. 
 
We must say NO to urbanization.   We must say NO to increased traffic.   
 
High density development will harm the character of our community.   
 
At the city council meeting on July 6, 2015, the Kosmont Report:  June 2015 Retail 
Market Analysis and Strategy  was introduced.  This Kosmont Report identified thirteen 
(13) Opportunity Sites through-out our community.  Many of those Opportunity Sites 
include mixed-use housing. 
 
It is my position that we reject the Opportunity Sites identified in the Kosmont Report 
until this council answers the following policy questions that were posed to the 
Economic Development Committee on August 21, 2015 and introduced to the city 
council on August 25, 2015: 
 

1. Is the City open to allowing mixed use development (including housing) in the 
Priority sites? 

2. Is the City willing to offer Zoning incentives?  These include:  
 Increased density? 
 Parking reduction? 
 Reduced setbacks? 
 Increased height allowance? 

3. Is the City willing to consider various financial incentives such as public-tax 
exempt/ or public/private (taxable-tax exempt bonds), etc? 

4. Upfront/Streamlined Environmental Review (CEQA)? 
 
 
Mission Viejo was built for those of us wanting to flee from those heavily populated and 
commercial areas to a clean and quiet bedroom community supporting our local 
businesses. 
 
It is not that we not want change, but we need to stop “urban crawl” into our community.    
 
As stated in earlier reports to the community, I identified areas through-out our city 
where market driven renovations have updated many of our commercial centers, all 
without adding a housing element.   

Item#20.              



CC-001C 
  

 
Please vote with me to reject the Kosmont Report Opportunity Sites until this council 
answers policy question on Mix-Use Housing, Zoning and Financial Incentives as well 
as the CEQA process. 
 
Do I have a second? 
 
 
 
 
 
Exhibit:   The Kosmont Report:  June 2015 Retail Market Analysis and Strategy 
 
 
 
My prior reports to the citizens of Mission Viejo: 
 05/24/16 Item # 21 
 07/12/16 Item # 25 
 08/23/16 Item # 30 
 10/12/16 Item # 18 
 

Item#20.              



Retail Market Analysis & Strategy 
 

June 2015 
 

Prepared By: 
Kosmont Companies 

Item
#20.              



Kosmont Companies is a nationally-recognized real estate & economics advisory firm 
specializing in public-private transactions for 27 years.  
 
 

Note: If needed, Financial Advisory and Real Estate Brokerage services provided by Kosmont Realty Corporation (SEC / 
MSRB Registered Municipal Advisor and Licensed Real Estate Brokerage Firm) 

2 

• Offers a full range of economics & real estate advisory services under Kosmont Retail NOW!® 
platform including: 

– Market and Feasibility Analyses 

– Fiscal Impact & Economic Benefit Studies 

– Economic Development Strategies & Implementation 

– Identification of Funding Sources & Financing Strategies 

– Retailer/Developer & Business Recruitment 

– Public-Private Transaction Structuring & Negotiation 

• Winning track record of initiating and implementing projects for municipalities 
– In-house team includes registered municipal advisors, financial analysts, lawyers, former bond underwriters, 

former city managers & department heads 

– Extensive network of brokers, investors and market data for real-time information, and retail industry leadership 

• Kosmont is not just a “study” company – we create strategies & make projects a reality 
– Over $12 billion in project negotiation and implementation since 1986 

– Completed hundreds of public and private financial transactions blending private investment with public funding 
sources to create win-win public-private financing structures 

Kosmont Companies Overview 

Item
#20.              



Project Background & Status 

3 

• Kosmont was retained by the City for the preparation of a Retail Market 
Analysis and Strategy (“Retail Strategy”) 

• The purpose of the Retail Strategy is to evaluate existing retail market 
conditions and provide recommended strategies to successfully 
promote economic growth within the City 

• An overview of the Retail Strategy is presented herein 

Item
#20.              



Plan Outline 

4 

1. Analysis 
a) Economic & Demographic Profile 

b) Market Demand Analysis 

2. Strategy 
a) Trade Area Retailer Voids 

b) Opportunity Site Assessment 

3. Summary of Findings 

Item
#20.              



Analysis Outline 

5 

1. Analysis 
a) Economic & Demographic Profile 

i. Population & Household Demographics 
ii. Unemployment & Employment by Industry 

b) Market Demand Analysis 
i. Employment Growth by Industry 
ii. Supply, Vacancy & Lease Rates 
iii. Taxable Retail Sales Performance 
iv. Retail Sales Surplus / Leakage 

Item
#20.              



Economic & 
Demographic Profile 

Population & Household Demographics 

6 

1. Analysis 

Item
#20.              



7 

Demographic Highlights 

Population & Households 
• Population of ~95,700 and ~34,000 households within the City in 2015 
• Population of ~654,800 and ~244,400 households within 10 miles of City Hall 

Income 
• Avg. HH income ~$122,500 in City and ~$129,100 within 10 miles 
• 1.9% annual growth projected for HH income over next 5 years in City 

Other Demographic Characteristics 
• Average household size of 2.8 in City (relatively small) 
• Median age of 44 in City (older) 
• ~46% Bachelor’s Degree or higher (high) 
• Race: ~78% White, ~10% Asian, ~12% other / two or more races 
• Ethnicity: ~19% Hispanic in City 
• Continually ranked safest City in the state, 9th in the nation in 2013* 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 
* Per CQ Crime Rankings 

Item
#20.              



City Limits & Radii 
(from City Hall – Marguerite Parkway & La Paz Road) 

8 Source: ESRI (2015) 

1 Mile 

3 Miles 

5 Miles 

City Limits 

10 Miles 

Item
#20.              



9 

Drive Times 
(from City Hall) 

5 Minutes 

10 Minutes 

15 Minutes 

Source: ESRI (2015) 

Item
#20.              



Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

2015 City of Mission 
Viejo 

Orange 
County California 

Population 95,681 3,124,130 38,371,836 
Households 33,969 1,026,508 12,932,388 
Average HH Size 2.79 3.00 2.90 
Median Age 43.9 36.9 35.7 

Per Capita Income $43,790 $35,179 $29,788 
Median HH Income $98,618 $77,676 $60,382 
Average HH Income $122,454 $106,158 $87,152 

2015-2020 Annual Growth Rate 
Population 0.64% 0.82% 0.73% 
Median HH Income 1.91% 2.36% 3.36% 

10 

Population and Income 
City, County and State 

Item
#20.              



Radii (from City Hall) 
2015 1 Mile 3 Miles 5 Miles 10 Miles 
Population 17,204 134,628 343,884 654,782 
Households 5,687 46,534 125,066 244,396 
Average HH Size 3.00 2.86 2.73 2.66 
Median Age 45.4 42.3 40.7 40.9 

Per Capita Income $55,747 $49,310 $50,603 $48,415 
Median HH Income $126,900 $94,689 $93,245 $97,747 
Average HH Income $144,908 $124,488 $122,503 $129,145 

2015-2020 Annual Growth Rate 
Population 0.49% 0.58% 0.75% 1.15% 
Median HH Income 3.29% 2.32% 2.23% 1.98% 

11 

Population and Income 
Radii from City Hall 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

Item
#20.              



Drive Times (from City Hall) 
2015 5 Minutes 10 Minutes 15 Minutes 
Population 65,586 336,899 611,227 
Households 22,811 123,322 226,424 
Average HH Size 2.83 2.71 2.68 
Median Age 45.1 40.4 40.2 

Per Capita Income $44,362 $43,399 $45,735 
Median HH Income $101,943 $91,036 $94,333 
Average HH Income $126,837 $118,369 $123,329 

2015-2020 Annual Growth Rate 
Population 0.61% 0.77% 1.16% 
Median HH Income 2.00% 2.34% 2.15% 

12 

Population and Income 
Drive Times from City Hall 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

Item
#20.              



Income Profile 

13 

City of Mission Viejo – 2015 Households by Income Bracket  

4% 4% 
5% 

8% 

15% 
14% 

22% 

14% 13% 

<$15K $15K -
$25K

$25K -
$35K

$35K -
$50K

$50K -
$75K

$75K -
$100K

$100K -
$150K

$150K -
$200K

$200K+

HH Income Median Avg. 
City $99K $122K 
County $78K $106K 

State $60K $87K 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

Item
#20.              



Age Profile 

14 

City Population by Age Bracket in 2015 

5% 
5% 

6% 6% 6% 

12% 11% 

16% 
15% 

10% 

5% 

3% 

0-4 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75-84 85+

Median Age 
City 43.9 
County 36.9 

State 35.7 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

Item
#20.              



Note: U.S. Census Bureau defines race and ethnicity as two separate and distinct identities. One Census question 
asks respondents which socio-political race (of categories in pie chart above) they associate most closely with, and a 
separate question asks whether they associate with “Hispanic, Latino, or Spanish origin” or not (defined as ethnicity). 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

Race & Ethnicity 

15 

City Population by Race & Ethnicity in 2015 

Hispanic Origin of Any Race: 19% 

Some Other Race Alone: 5% 

2 or More Races: 5% 
Other: 1% 

White Alone 
78% 

*Most respondents of 
Hispanic Origin additionally 
indicate “White” or “Some 
Other Race” 

Black Alone: 2% 

Asian 
Alone 
10% 

Item
#20.              



Educational Attainment 

16 

Population Aged 25+ by Educational Attainment 

5% 

16% 

33% 

29% 

17% 16% 
18% 

29% 

24% 

13% 

18% 
21% 

30% 

20% 

12% 

No high school
diploma

High school graduate
or equivalent

Some college or
Associate's degree

Bachelor's degree Graduate or prof.
degree

City County State
% Bachelor’s 

Degree or Higher 
City 46% 
County 38% 

State 31% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

Item
#20.              



Housing & Household Size 

17 

Housing Breakdown (2015) 

74% 

24% 

3% 

54% 

41% 

5% 

50% 

42% 

8% 

Owner Occupied Renter Occupied Vacant

City County State

Avg. HH Size 
City 2.79 

County 3.00 

State 2.90 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

Item
#20.              



Home Value History 

Source: Zillow.com (March 2015) 18 

County 

City 

California 

Zillow Home Value Index 

$441,000 

$637,000 

$617,000 

Item
#20.              



Population Segmentation Profile 

19 

Source: ESRI (2015) 

Top 5 “Tapestries” in City Percent Sample Characteristics 

1. Savvy Suburbanites 25% 

• Well-educated, well-capitalized, active residents 
• Owner occupied, single family homes, low vacancy 
• Informed shoppers, connected to technology 
• Enjoy good food and wine and cultural amenities 

2. Professional Pride 15% 

• Well-educated, white-collar commuter families 
• Financially active, frequent travelers, shop on credit 
• Shop online and at Home Depot, Bed Bath & Beyond 
• Tech-savvy, active, spend on health and wellness 

3. Enterprising Professionals 14% 

• Employed in science, tech, engineering, mathematics 
• Live in newer condos, town homes, apartments 
• Active, shop organic/natural, buy name brands online 
• Use personal care services (dry cleaning), frequent 

Cheesecake Factory, Chick-Fil-A, Starbucks 

4. Pleasantville 14% 

• Older, settled households, educated, mostly married 
couples, high incomes (white collar) and net worth 

• Older, single family homes, low vacancy 
• Shop online and in stores, from upscale to discount 

5. The Elders 9% 

• Older, smaller households, many in group quarters or 
nursing home / senior-living facilities 

• Retirees, use coupons, prefer American and 
environmentally safe products, don’t shop online 

Item
#20.              



Economic & 
Demographic Profile 

Unemployment & Employment by Industry 

20 

1. Analysis 

Item
#20.              



Unemployment 

21 

3.0% 2.7% 2.4% 
2.8% 

3.8% 

6.3% 

9.1% 
8.5% 

7.3% 

6.1% 

5.1% 

4.2% 
3.7% 3.4% 

3.9% 

5.3% 

8.7% 

9.7% 
9.0% 

7.8% 

6.5% 

5.5% 
6.2% 

5.4% 
4.9% 

5.4% 

7.3% 

11.2% 

12.2% 
11.7% 

10.4% 

8.9% 

7.5% 

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Note: Not seasonally adjusted; annual averages 
Source: California Employment Development Department (2015) 

City 

Unemployment Rate 
(March 2015) 

State 6.5% 
County 4.4% 
City 4.1% 

State 

County 

Item
#20.              



22 

48% 

29% 

13% 

5% 5% 

39% 

27% 

17% 

10% 
7% 

36% 

24% 
19% 

11% 10% 

Management,
business, science &

arts

Sales & office Service Production,
transportation &
material moving

Natural resources,
construction &
maintenance

City County State

Resident Employment by Occupation 
Civilian Employed Population Age 16+ by Occupation 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

Item
#20.              



Employment by Industry 

23 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau Center for Economic Studies (2011) 

City Resident Employed Population (Age 16+) 
Retail trade 10.6% 
Healthcare & social assist. 10.5% 
Prof., scientific & tech. services 10.2% 
Educational services 9.2% 
Accommodation & food services 8.4% 
Manufacturing 8.4% 
Wholesale trade 6.4% 
Admin. & support & waste mgmt. 6.2% 
Finance & insurance 5.5% 
Other services, except public admin. 4.1% 
Construction 3.7% 
Public administration 3.6% 
Information 3.3% 
Real estate rental & leasing 2.4% 
Transportation & warehousing 2.1% 
Arts, entertainment & recreation 1.8% 
Management of companies & enterprises 1.8% 
Agriculture, forestry, fishing & hunting 0.9% 
Utilities 0.8% 
Mining, quarrying, oil & gas extraction 0.1% 

Workers Employed within City 
Healthcare & social assist. 27.8% 
Retail trade 17.6% 
Educational services 14.6% 
Accommodation & food services 8.0% 
Prof., scientific & tech. services 5.8% 
Other services, except public admin. 4.2% 
Admin. & support & waste mgmt. 4.1% 
Construction 3.4% 
Finance & insurance 3.1% 
Wholesale trade 2.7% 
Manufacturing 2.6% 
Arts, entertainment & recreation 1.8% 
Real estate rental & leasing 1.5% 
Public administration 1.0% 
Transportation & warehousing 0.8% 
Management of companies & enterprises 0.6% 
Information 0.4% 
Utilities 0.0% 
Agriculture, forestry, fishing & hunting 0.0% 
Mining, quarrying, oil & gas extraction 0.0% 

“Industries in which City residents work” “Jobs in the City” 

Item
#20.              



Major Employers 

24 Source: City of Mission Viejo (2014) 

Employer Estimated # 
Employees 

% Total City 
Employment 

1) Mission Hospital Regional Medical Center 2,443 6.4% 

2) Saddleback College 1,975 5.2% 

3) Saddleback Valley Unified School District 1,502 3.9% 

4) Capistrano Unified School District 441 1.2% 

5) Nordstrom 400 1.0% 

6) Macy's 250 0.7% 

7) Target 250 0.7% 

8) Vocational Visions 196 0.5% 

9) US Post Office 194 0.5% 

Top 9 Total 7,651 20.1% 
Note: Total City employment based on employees (residents and non-residents) within the City as estimated by ESRI and Dun & Bradstreet (38,211) 

Item
#20.              



Resident Concentration Within City 

25 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau Center for Economic Studies (2011) 

5 – 304 Employed residents/Sq. Mile 
305 – 1,202 Employed residents/Sq. Mile 
1,203 – 2,699 Employed residents/Sq. Mile 
2,700 – 4,794 Employed residents/Sq. Mile 
4,795 – 7,489 Employed residents/Sq. Mile 
1 – 4 Employed residents 
5 – 51 Employed residents 
52 – 257 Employed residents 
258 – 812 Employed residents 
813 – 1,983 Employed residents 

Item
#20.              



Employment Concentration Within City 

26 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau Center for Economic Studies (2011) 

Item
#20.              



Source: U.S. Census Bureau Center for Economic Studies (2011) 

Resident and Employee Commute 

27 

Employed Resident Place of Work 
Irvine 13.3% 
Mission Viejo 9.2% 
Los Angeles 6.1% 
Santa Ana 5.4% 
Lake Forest 4.1% 
San Diego 3.5% 
Newport Beach 3.2% 
Costa Mesa 3.2% 
Laguna Hills 2.8% 
Anaheim 2.5% 
Rancho Santa Margarita 2.5% 
Orange 2.4% 
San Juan Capistrano 1.9% 
Aliso Viejo 1.8% 
Laguna Niguel 1.7% 
Tustin 1.7% 
San Clemente 1.6% 
Huntington Beach 1.0% 
Dana Point 0.9% 
San Francisco 0.9% 
Other 30.2% 

City Employee Origin 
Mission Viejo 13.2% 
Lake Forest 5.5% 
Rancho Santa Margarita 4.4% 
Laguna Niguel 4.3% 
Irvine 3.9% 
San Clemente 3.5% 
Los Angeles 3.1% 
Anaheim 2.9% 
Aliso Viejo 2.9% 
Santa Ana 2.5% 
Laguna Hills 2.5% 
San Juan Capistrano 2.3% 
Dana Point 1.8% 
Orange 1.8% 
San Diego 1.8% 
Huntington Beach 1.6% 
Ladera Ranch 1.5% 
Tustin 1.3% 
Costa Mesa 1.2% 
Newport Beach 1.2% 
Other 36.9% 

“Where City residents work” “Where people who work in the City come from” 

Item
#20.              



Worker Inflow / Outflow 

28 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau Center for Economic Studies (2011) 

Workers living & employed 
in the City 

Workers employed in the 
City but living outside 

Workers living in the City 
but employed outside 

“Are jobs coming or going?” 

Working Coming (Inflow): 29,043 
Workers Going (Outflow): 43,534 
Net: (14,491) 

Item
#20.              



Traffic Counts 

29 Source: Market Planning Solutions (2012); ESRI (2015) 

Item
#20.              



30 

• Well-educated, affluent, relatively older population 

• Smaller than average household size, majority owner-occupied homes, 
low vacancy, home values higher than County and State averages 

• Low unemployment rate relative to County and State averages 

• Most employees in City work in healthcare, retail, educational services, 
accommodation/food services, and professional/scientific/technical 
services 

• City is a net exporter of jobs, with residents employed in Irvine, Los 
Angeles, Santa Ana, within Mission Viejo, and other cities 

• Continually ranked safest City in the state, among top in the nation 

Summary: Demographics and Employment 

Item
#20.              



31 

Market Demand Analysis 
Employment Growth by Industry 

1. Analysis 

Item
#20.              



Employment Projections by Industry 
Orange County 

32 
Source: California Employment Development Department, U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (2015) 

Industry 2012 2022 
Annual 
Growth 
2012-22 

Total 
Growth 
2012-22 

Total 
Change 
2012-22 

Professional and Business Services 259,900 335,000 2.9% 28.9% 75,100 
Health Care and Social Assistance 149,100 185,900 2.5% 24.7% 36,800 
Accommodation and Food Services 141,300 174,700 2.4% 23.6% 33,400 
Retail Trade 143,900 168,400 1.7% 17.0% 24,500 
Construction 71,400 95,700 3.4% 34.0% 24,300 
Financial Activities 108,200 132,400 2.2% 22.4% 24,200 
Wholesale Trade 76,900 96,000 2.5% 24.8% 19,100 
Educational Services (Private) 24,700 30,400 2.3% 23.1% 5,700 
Government  147,900 153,500 0.4% 3.8% 5,600 
Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation 39,300 44,600 1.3% 13.5% 5,300 
Information 24,300 27,300 1.2% 12.3% 3,000 
Transportation and Warehousing 24,000 25,100 0.5% 4.6% 1,100 
Utilities 4,000 5,000 2.5% 25.0% 1,000 
Other Services 44,600 44,600 0.0% 0.0% 0 
Mining and Logging 500 400 (2.0%) (20.0%) (100) 
Manufacturing 158,200 150,900 (0.5%) (4.6%) (7,300) 
Total Nonfarm 1,418,100 1,669,900 1.8% 17.8% 251,800 
Total Farm 2,800 3,300 1.8% 17.9% 500 
Self Employed / Unpaid / Other 103,000 116,100 1.3% 12.7% 13,100 
Total Employment 1,523,900 1,789,300 1.7% 17.4% 265,400 

Item
#20.              



33 

Market Demand Analysis 
Supply, Vacancy & Lease Rates 

1. Analysis 

Item
#20.              



Supply, Vacancy & Lease Rates 

• Mission Viejo falls within the “South County” submarket of the Orange 
County market area for retail (as defined by CoStar), including: 

 
• Supply, vacancy, and lease rates for retail uses are compared between 

South County and other Orange County submarkets 

• Retail vacancy within the City is estimated below the South County 
submarket and total Orange County market averages 

• Retail lease rates within the City are estimated above the South County 
submarket and Orange County market averages 

34 
Source: Avison Young; CoStar Property (Q1 2015) 

– Aliso Viejo 
– Dana Point 
– Foothill Ranch 
– Laguna Beach 

– Laguna Hills 
– Laguna Niguel 
– Lake Forest 
– Mission Viejo 

– Rancho Santa Margarita 
– San Clemente 
– San Juan Capistrano 

Item
#20.              



Orange County Submarkets 

35 
Source: Avison Young; CoStar Property (Q1 2015) 

Item
#20.              



1.9% 

3.5% 3.6% 
4.1% 4.4% 4.4% 

8.7% 

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

7.0%

8.0%

9.0%

10.0%

Laguna Beach /
Laguna Niguel

Mission Viejo Total South
County

Dana Point / San
Clemente / SJC

Foothill Ranch /
Lake Forest /

RSM

Total Orange
County

Aliso Viejo /
Laguna Hills

Retail Vacancy (Q1 2015) 

3.4M 4.3M 24.0M 4.1M 5.0M 113.5M 4.2M Total G.L.A. 

G.L.A. = Gross Leasable Area (in square feet) 

36 
Source: Avison Young; CoStar Property (Q1 2015) 

Retail Vacancy 
South Orange County 

Item
#20.              



$1.55  

$1.81  

$2.12  
$2.23  

$2.33  

$2.62  
$2.74  

$0.80

$1.30

$1.80

$2.30

$2.80

$3.30

Foothill Ranch /
Lake Forest /

RSM

Total Orange
County

Total South
County

Aliso Viejo /
Laguna Hills

Mission Viejo Dana Point / San
Clemente / SJC

Laguna Beach /
Laguna Niguel

Average Asking Retail Lease Rates – $PSF / Month NNN 
(Q1 2015) 

5.0M 113.5M 24.0M 4.2M 4.3M 4.1M 3.4M Total G.L.A. 

37 

G.L.A. = Gross Leasable Area (in square feet) 
Source: Avison Young; CoStar Property (Q1 2015) 

Retail Asking Lease Rates 
South Orange County 

Item
#20.              



Retail Format Breakdown 
South Orange County 

38 
Source: Avison Young; CoStar Property (Q1 2015) 

Retail Format Total GLA Vacancy 
Asking  
Lease  
Rates 

Storefront  / Freestanding (mixed-use, storefront, freestanding) 4.1M 3.9% $1.77 
Strip Centers (convenience-oriented <30K SF) 0.9M 8.8% $2.53 
Community / Neighborhood (convenience-oriented >30K SF) 12.0M 4.0% $2.16 
Power Centers (category dominant anchors, big box) 3.7M 2.3% $3.91 
Mall Centers (regional and super-regional malls) 2.6M 1.2% N/A* 
Specialty Centers (lifestyle, outlet, theme, festival, leisure, airport) 0.6M 3.3% $2.84 
Total Retail 24.0M 3.6% $2.14 

* Mall Center asking lease rates not available 

Item
#20.              



Historical Rent, Vacancy & Absorption 
Total Orange County 

39 
Source: Avison Young; CoStar Property (Q1 2015) 

Item
#20.              



40 

Market Demand Analysis 
Taxable Retail Sales Performance 

1. Analysis 

Item
#20.              



41 

Taxable Retail Sales Performance 
• Taxable consumer spending across retail categories is totaled and 

normalized for population within the City and comparison regions for the 
purpose of evaluating relative taxable retail sales performance 

• Retail sales per capita for the City (~$14,900) is above average when 
compared to the Orange County average (~$13,900) 

* ”Other retail” includes  sporting goods, office supply, drug stores, and other retail 

Item
#20.              



Mission Viejo & Comparison Cities 

42 Source: ESRI (2015) 

San Diego 
County 

Riverside 
County 

Mission 
Viejo 

Newport 
Beach 

Irvine 

10 Miles San Juan 
Capistrano 

Laguna 
Niguel 

Laguna 
Beach 

Rancho Santa 
Margarita 

Lake 
Forest 

Laguna 
Hills 

Aliso Viejo 

Laguna Woods 

Dana Point 

San Clemente 

Item
#20.              



Retail Sales Comparison 
Mission Viejo & Comparison Cities 

$91 
$337 $343 $487 

$673 $677 $718 
$887 $939 

$1,211 
$1,425 $1,493 

$3,856 

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$3,500

$4,000

$4,500 Total Retail Sales 
(in $ millions) 

17 50 23 49 31 36 34 65 65 81 96 88 233 

43 Source: ESRI, Dun & Bradstreet (2015) 

2015 Population (000s): 

Item
#20.              



$5.2 
$6.7 

$10.0 

$13.7 $13.9 $14.5 $14.6 $14.9 $15.0 
$16.6 $17.0 

$18.8 

$21.1 $22.0 

$0.0

$5.0

$10.0

$15.0

$20.0

$25.0 Per Capita Retail Sales 
(in $ thousands) 

2015 Population (000s): 

Per Capita Retail Sales 
Mission Viejo & Comparison Regions 

17 50 49 65 3,124 65 23 96 81 233 88 36 34 31 

44 Source: ESRI, Dun & Bradstreet (2015) 

Item
#20.              



45 

Market Demand Analysis 
Retail Sales Surplus / Leakage 

1. Analysis 

Item
#20.              



46 

Retail Sales Surplus / Leakage 

• Overall retail sales in the City are lower than retail spending potential 
based on households and average household income, suggesting that, 
overall, the City is likely leaking a significant portion of Mission Viejo 
resident retail purchases to other jurisdictions (i.e. sales leakage) 

• Certain categories, however, are exhibiting a retail sales surplus, 
including: 
‒ Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores 
‒ Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores 
‒ Electronics & Appliance Stores 

Note: Includes estimated taxable and non-taxable retail sales 

Item
#20.              



$6.7 

$10.0 

$14.5 $14.6 $14.9 $15.0 
$16.6 

$18.8 
$21.1 

$22.0 

$13.9 

$18.0 $17.8 

$20.5 

$26.7 

$17.2 
$15.7 

$17.7 

$14.4 

$19.1 

$17.1 

$13.3 

Aliso Viejo R.S.M. Laguna
Niguel

Laguna
Beach

Mission
Viejo

Lake
Forest

Irvine San Juan
Cap.

Dana Point Laguna
Hills

Orange
County

Retail Sales Per Capita ($000s) - "Cash Registers"

Retail Spending Potential Per Capita ($000s) - "Wallets"

Retail Sales Surplus / Leakage 
“Cash Registers vs. Wallets” 

Note: Spending potential based on number of households, average household income, and estimated percentage of income 
spent on retail goods and services 
Source: ESRI, Dun & Bradstreet (2015) 

Surplus/Leakage – Per Capita ($Thousands), Total ($Millions), and Percentage: 

Leakage 

47 

($11.3) ($7.8) ($6.0) ($12.1) ($2.3) ($0.8) ($1.1) $4.4  $2.0  $4.9  $0.6  
($566) ($379) ($387) ($284) ($217) ($61) ($265) $158  $68  $150  $1,929  
(63%) (44%) (29%) (45%) (13%) (5%) (6%) 31% 10% 29% 5% 

Item
#20.              



48 

Retail Category Definitions 
• Shopper Goods / GAFO (General Merchandise, Apparel & Accessories, Furniture & Other Sales) 

– Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores 
– General Merchandise Stores 
– Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores 
– Health & Personal Care Stores 
– Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music Stores 
– Electronics & Appliance Stores 
– Miscellaneous Store Retailers (incl. Office Supply) 

• Convenience Goods 
– Food and Beverage (Grocery Stores) 
– Food Service and Drinking Places (Restaurants & Bars) 

• Heavy Commercial Goods 
– Building Materials (Home Improvement) 
– Auto Dealers & Supplies 
– Gasoline / Service Stations 

• Non-Store Retailers (e.g., Online Shopping & Mail-Order) 

Note: Retail Categories delineated by NAICS / California Board of Equalization 

Item
#20.              



  

49 

  Key:   Indicates higher value for Mission Viejo Indicates lower value for Mission Viejo 

Per Capita Retail Sales by Category 
City & Comparison Regions 

Per Capita Retail Sales Mission 
Viejo 

Rancho 
San. Marg. 

Laguna 
Niguel 

Lake 
Forest Irvine San Juan 

Capistrano 
Laguna 

Hills 
Orange 
County 

Shopper Goods (GAFO): 
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores $1,258 $338 $439 $757 $1,167 $605 $1,387 $964 
General Merchandise Stores $1,438 $845 $3,506 $974 $1,650 $2,073 $2,656 $1,751 
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores $408 $371 $547 $247 $541 $153 $1,245 $320 
Health & Personal Care Stores $1,062 $1,960 $1,826 $1,510 $519 $635 $1,053 $987 
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book, Music Stores $298 $83 $178 $494 $234 $86 $1,253 $280 
Electronics & Appliance Stores $758 $92 $309 $367 $797 $244 $1,977 $405 
Miscellaneous Store Retailers $361 $375 $173 $562 $525 $446 $383 $376 
Total GAFO $5,584 $4,064 $6,978 $4,911 $5,432 $4,242 $9,953 $5,084 

Convenience Goods: 
Food & Beverage Stores (Grocery) $1,388 $2,732 $1,929 $1,680 $1,727 $1,895 $2,752 $1,712 
Food Services & Drinking Places (Restaurants) $1,435 $1,085 $1,236 $1,498 $2,063 $1,514 $2,110 $1,594 
Total Convenience $2,823 $3,816 $3,166 $3,178 $3,790 $3,409 $4,861 $3,306 

Heavy Commercial: 
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. Supply Stores $283 $332 $341 $395 $186 $540 $276 $299 
Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers $2,410 $1,677 $3,402 $2,596 $2,954 $7,116 $1,534 $2,782 
Gasoline Stations $954 $75 $114 $2,328 $1,531 $798 $639 $829 
Total Heavy Commercial $3,648 $2,084 $3,857 $5,319 $4,671 $8,455 $2,449 $3,910 

Non-store Retailers $2,836 $26 $515 $1,574 $2,685 $2,685 $4,748 $1,610 

Total Retail $14,891 $9,991 $14,516 $14,982 $16,577 $18,791 $22,011 $13,909 

Source: ESRI, Dun & Bradstreet (2015) 

Item
#20.              



Retail Sales Surplus / Leakage by Category 
City of Mission Viejo 

50 

Retail Category 
Retail  

Spending 
Potential 

Retail  
Sales 

Retail  
Surplus/ 

(Leakage) 

Percent 
Surplus/ 

(Leakage) 
Shopper Goods (GAFO): 
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores $105,317,238 $120,386,202 $15,068,964  14.3% 
General Merchandise Stores $214,308,545 $137,597,149 ($76,711,396) (35.8%) 
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores $37,255,094 $39,035,656 $1,780,562  4.8% 
Health & Personal Care Stores $116,589,987 $101,584,474 ($15,005,513) (12.9%) 
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music Stores $34,286,521 $28,550,346 ($5,736,175) (16.7%) 
Electronics & Appliance Stores $36,781,324 $72,554,170 $35,772,846  97.3% 
Miscellaneous Store Retailers $45,194,242 $34,536,537 ($10,657,705) (23.6%) 
Subtotal – GAFO $589,732,951  $534,244,534  ($55,488,417) (9.4%) 

    
Convenience Goods: 
Food & Beverage Stores (Grocery) $258,567,166 $132,818,031 ($125,749,135) (48.6%) 
Food Services & Drinking Places (Restaurants) $169,823,921 $137,283,172 ($32,540,749) (19.2%) 
Subtotal – Convenience $428,391,087  $270,101,203  ($158,289,884) (36.9%) 

    
Heavy Commercial Goods: 
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores $50,707,926 $27,122,121 ($23,585,805) (46.5%) 
Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers $293,315,188 $230,600,985 ($62,714,203) (21.4%) 
Gasoline Stations $122,975,287 $91,291,679 ($31,683,608) (25.8%) 
Subtotal – Heavy Commercial $466,998,401  $349,014,785  ($117,983,616) (25.3%) 

Non-store Retailers $156,396,026 $271,391,695 $114,995,669  73.5% 

Total Retail $1,641,518,465 $1,424,752,217 ($216,766,248) (13.2%) 

Source: ESRI, Dun & Bradstreet (2015) 

Item
#20.              



Retail Sales Leakage Categories and Supportable SF 

51 

Retail Sales Leakage Categories 
Retail  
Sales 

Leakage 

Estimated 
Sales PSF 

Estimated 
Supportable 

SF 

General Merchandise Stores $76,711,396  $300 255,705 SF 
Health & Personal Care Stores $15,005,513  $400 37,514 SF 
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music Stores $5,736,175  $400 14,340 SF 
Miscellaneous Store Retailers $10,657,705  $400 26,644 SF 
Food & Beverage Stores (Grocery) $125,749,135  $400 314,373 SF 
Food Services & Drinking Places (Rest. / Bars) $32,540,749  $400 81,352 SF 
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores $23,585,805  $400 58,965 SF 
Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers $62,714,203  $1,200 52,262 SF 
Gasoline Stations $31,683,608  $800 39,605 SF 
Total Sales Leakage Categories $384,384,289  880,759 SF 

Source: ESRI, Dun & Bradstreet, Avison Young, CoStar Property, Kosmont Companies (2015) 

• ~881,000 SF of retail supported by existing sales leakage 

• Important to consider ~152,000 SF of vacant retail space within the City (as of 
Q1 2015 as estimated by Avison Young and CoStar) 

Item
#20.              



52 

Surplus/Leakage Summary by Category 

Surplus Retail Categories Leakage Retail Categories 
• Clothing & Clothing Accessories 

Stores 
• Furniture & Home Furnishings 

Stores 
• Electronics & Appliance Stores 
• Nonstore Retailers 

• General Merchandise Stores 
• Health & Personal Care Stores 
• Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & 

Music Stores 
• Miscellaneous Store Retailers 
• Food & Beverage Stores 
• Food Services & Drinking Places 
• Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & 

Supply Stores 
• Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers 
• Gasoline Stations 

Item
#20.              



Strategy Outline 

53 

2. Strategy 
a) Trade Area Retailer Voids 

b) Opportunity Site Assessment 

Item
#20.              



Trade Area 
Retailer Voids 

54 

2. Strategy 

Item
#20.              



55 

• Retailer voids were evaluated for all major retail categories within the 
City and larger trade area 

• Potential voids include fitness, casual and other restaurants, wholesale, 
and other retailers 

Summary: Retailer Voids 

Item
#20.              



Source: Sites USA; Directory of Major Malls (2015) 56 

Major Shopping Center Map 
Mission Viejo Trade Area 

(“GLA”) 

10 Miles 

The Shops at Mission Viejo 
1,148,957 GLA 

The Center at Rancho Niguel 
360,000 GLA 

Santa Margarita Marketplace 
328,000 GLA 

Kaleidoscope Courtyards 
215,000 GLA 

Santa Margarita Town Center 
310,097 GLA 

The District at Tustin Legacy 
1,000,000 GLA 

The Commons at Aliso Viejo T/C 
181,160 GLA 

Item
#20.              



57 

National Retailer Voids 
(within City Limits) 

Note: List to be refined for targeting purposes by City and Consultant Team 

Source: Sites USA (2015) 

Auto Parts Tires Clothing Apparel (Cont'd.) Craft Fabric Stores Dollar Stores 
Big O Tires Lane Bryant Hobby Lobby 99 Cent Only 
CARQUEST Last Call Jo-Ann Dollar General 
Firestone Loehmann's Family Dollar 
Goodyear New York & Company Department Stores Just-A-Buck 
NAPA Nordstrom Rack Barneys New York 
Pep Boys Rainbow Bloomingdale's Drug Stores 

Rue21 Dillard's Rite Aid 
Book Stores Saks OFF 5TH JCPenney 
Barnes & Noble The Limited Neiman Marcus 
Deseret Book Tilly's Saks Fifth Avenue 

Urban Outfitters 
Clothing Apparel Discount Department Stores 
American Eagle Outfitters Computers Electronic David's Bridal 
Ann Taylor Factory Fry's Electronics Kmart 
Ann Taylor Loft Outlet RadioShack Kohl's 
Anthropologie Marshalls 
Avenue Convenience Stores Ross 
Buckle BP Sears 
Catherines Exxon SuperTarget 
Citi Trends Mobil Wal-Mart 
dd's DISCOUNTS Sinclair Wal-Mart Supercenter 
Dress Barn Texaco 
Factory 2-U Valero 
Fallas Paredes 
Hollister Co. 

Item
#20.              



58 

National Retailer Voids 
(within City Limits) 

Fitness Grocery Stores Home Improvement Sporting Goods 
Anytime Fitness Cardenas Ace Hardware Big 5 
Crunch El Super Do It Best Champs Sports 
Curves For Women Food 4 Less Dunn-Edwards Dick's 
Equinox Fitness fresh&easy Kelly-Moore Golfsmith 
Gold's Gym H Mart Lowe's REI 
In-Shape Jons Marketplace Orchard 
Lifetime Fitness Neighborhood Market Sherwin-Williams Wholesale 
Planet Fitness Northgate Market Costco 
Powerhouse Gym Stater Bros. Office Supply Sam's Club 
Spectrum Athletic Clubs Superior Grocers Office Depot 
World Gym Top Valu Market Staples Wireless Stores 

Vallarta Supermarkets Cricket 
Furniture Household Vons Pet Stores Sprint 
Anna's Linens Whole Foods PetsMart Verizon Wireless 
Ashley Furniture WinCo Foods 
Bassett Shoes Footwear 
Crate and Barrel Health Beauty Famous Footwear 
Ethan Allen Cost Cutters Foot Locker 
HomeGoods Great Clips Johnston & Murphy 
IKEA Sally Beauty Supply Nike 
Jennifer Convertibles ULTA Nine West 
LAMPS PLUS Nine West Outlet 
Relax The Back Off Broadway 
Sur La Table 
The Container Store 
Thomasville 

Note: List to be refined for targeting purposes by City and Consultant Team 

Source: Sites USA (2015) 

Item
#20.              



59 

National Retailer Voids – Restaurants 
(within City Limits) 

Note: List to be refined for targeting purposes by City and Consultant Team 

Source: Sites USA (2015) 

Bakery Bagels Casual (Cont'd.) Fast Food Minor Pizza 
Bruegger's Maggiano's A&W Chuck E. Cheese's 
Corner Bakery Marie Callender's Boston Market Hungry Howie's 
Manhattan Bagel McCormick & Schmick's Church's Chicken Papa Murphy's 
Noah's Mimis Cafe In-N-Out Pizza Patron 

Morton's Long John Silver's Rosati's 
Casual Olive Garden Popeyes Sbarro 
Another Broken Egg Outback Steakhouse Rally's Shakeys 
Applebee's Pei Wei Steak n Shake 
BJ's Restaurant & Brewery Qdoba Wienerschnitzel Sandwich 
Bonefish Grill Rainforest Cafe Wing Stop Blimpie 
Brio Red Lobster Capriotti's 
Buca Di Beppo Red Robin Ice Cream Smoothie Firehouse Subs 
Buffalo's Southwest Cafe Ruth's Chris Ben & Jerry's Great Steak 
Cafe Rio Ryan's Carvel Quiznos 
Capital Grille Samurai Sam's Froots Sandella's Flatbread 
Carino's Sizzler Juice It Up! Schlotzsky's Deli 
Chart House T.G.I. Friday's NRgize Which Wich 
Chevys Orange Julius 
Costa Vida Coffee Donuts Pinkberry 
Dickey's Peet's Red Mango 
Elephant Bar The Coffee Bean Robeks 
Famous Dave's Tully's Coffee Smoothie King 
Fleming's Winchell's Surf City Squeeze 
Fuddruckers TCBY 
Golden Corral Fast Food Major 
Hooters Arby's 
IHOP Burger King 
Joe's Crab Shack KFC 
Johnny Rockets Wendy's 
Macaroni Grill 

Item
#20.              



Opportunity Site 
Assessment 

60 

2. Strategy 

Item
#20.              



Opportunity Site Assessment 

61 

• Several locations within City were emphasized by the City and 
evaluated by the City/Consultant Team as potential Opportunity Sites 
for retail and other development  

• Strengths, Challenges, and Opportunities were assessed for the 
Opportunity Sites in consideration of development feasibility 

Item
#20.              



Opportunity Site Overview 

Source: ESRI (2015) 
62 

Opportunity Site #1 
Mission Viejo Village Plaza 

Opportunity Site #3 
Community Center Hospitality 

Opportunity Site #4 
Trabuco Rd. & Marguerite Pkwy Opportunity Site #7 

Target Center – Alicia Parkway 

City Limits 

Opportunity Site #2 
Mission Viejo Garden Plaza 

Opportunity Site #8 
Mission Viejo Freeway Center 

Opportunity Site #5 
Former Unisys Site – Jeronimo Rd. 

Opportunity Site #12 
Burlington Coat Factory 

Opportunity Site #6 
Gateway Shopping Center 

Opportunity Site #13 
Estanciero Dr. & Marguerite Pkwy 

Opportunity Site #11 
Renew Apartments - Marguerite Pkwy 

Opportunity Site #9 
Puerta Real & Crown Valley Pkwy Opportunity Site #10 

Shops at Mission Viejo 

Note: Potential opportunity sites listed in no particular order 

Item
#20.              



Opportunity Site #1 
Mission Viejo Village Plaza 

63 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Strong intersection at Marguerite 

Parkway and La Paz Road 
• Directly adjacent to civic center 
• Adjacent open space and trails 
• Strong household incomes 
• Commercial zoning 

• Fragmented 
ownership 

• Aging exterior 
• Unused parking in 

rear, poor traffic 
circulation 

• Potential revitalization, 
including improved 
parking and circulation 

• Potential mixed-use 
redevelopment with 
residential 

• Approx. 28.6 acres 
• Approx. 231,000 SF buildings 
• Various private ownerships 
• Zoned Community Commercial 

(CC) 

City Hall & 
Public Library 

Item
#20.              



Opportunity Site #2 
Mission Viejo Garden Plaza 

64 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Strong intersection at Marguerite 

Parkway and La Paz Road 
• Directly adjacent to civic center 

and robust retail 
• Strong household incomes 

 

• Steep grade • Potential mixed-use 
development with 
residential 

• Approx. 5.2 acres 
• Approx. 54,000 SF buildings 
• Owned by VR Garden Plaza LLC 
• Zoned Office Professional (OP) 

City Hall & 
Public Library 

Item
#20.              



Opportunity Site #3 
Norman P. Murray Center – Potential Hospitality 

65 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Proximity to major intersection at 

Marguerite Parkway and La Paz 
Road 

• Significant athletic and other 
community center events, 
pedestrian traffic 

• Strong household incomes 

• Location • Potential hotel 
development 

• Improved parking (e.g. 
structure) 

• Potential hospitality opportunity in the 
vicinity of Norman P. Murray Center 

• Community Facility land use surrounded 
by Recreation / Open Space uses (Oso 
Viejo Community Park) 

Norman P. 
Murray Center 

Middle 
School 

Elks Lodge 
(Mission Viejo 

Elks Lodge #2444) 

Open Space 
(Pacific Hills HOA) Ralphs Center 

(La Paz & Marguerite 
Shopping Center LP) 

Item
#20.              



Opportunity Site #4 
Retail Vacancy – Trabuco Road & Marguerite Parkway 

66 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Signalized intersection at 

Marguerite Pkwy. & Trabuco Rd. 
• Commercial zoning 
• Strong household incomes 

 
 

• Existing vacancy 
• 3-way intersection 

(effectively) 

• Potential re-tenanting 

• Approx. 3.5 acres 
• Approx. 38,000 SF buildings 
• Owned by CP Marguerite MV 

LLC and Wayne C. Reither 
• Zoned Commercial 

Neighborhood (CN) 

Item
#20.              



Opportunity Site #5 
Old Unisys Site – Jeronimo Road 

67 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Large parcel adjacent to existing 

retail (Target) 
• Strong household incomes 

 
 
 

• Access 
• Visibility 
• Environmental 

conditions 

• Potential mixed-use 
development 

• Approx. 26.9 acres 
• Owned by MV Universal LLC 
• Zoned Business Park (BP) 

Item
#20.              



Opportunity Site #6 
Gateway Shopping Center 

68 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Signalized intersection at Alicia 

Pkwy & Jeronimo Rd 
• Adjacent retail uses 
• Strong household incomes 

 
 

• Vacancy on west portion 
• Parking / circulation 
• Easement 

• Potential re-tenanting 

• Approx. 8.6 acres 
• Approx. 80,000 SF buildings 
• Owned by Gateway Garp LLC 
• Zoned Commercial Neighborhood (CN) 

Item
#20.              



Opportunity Site #7 
Target Center – Alicia Parkway and I-5 Freeway 

69 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Freeway intersection at I-5 and 

Alicia Parkway 
• Adjacent supporting retail 
• Commercial zoning 
• Strong household incomes 

 

• Unused parking fields 
(former garden center) 

• Potential revitalization, 
more efficient parking 

• Potential mixed-use 
development with 
residential 

• Approx. 10.1 acres 
• Approx. 113,000 SF Target 
• Owned by Target Corp 
• Zoned Community Commercial 

(CC) 

Item
#20.              



Opportunity Site #8 
Mission Viejo Freeway Center – I-5 and El Paseo 

70 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Freeway-oriented retail along I-5 
• High concentration of retail 
• Commercial zoning 
• Strong household incomes 

 

• Access 
• Previous big box 

vacancies 

• Potential property 
revitalization, site 
improvements, improved 
signage 

• Approx. 30+ acres 
• Multiple big box retail users 
• Multiple private ownerships 
• Zoned Commercial 

Highway (CH) 

N 

Mission Viejo 
High School 

Item
#20.              



Opportunity Site #9 
Puerta Real & Crown Valley Parkway 

71 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• I-5 Freeway visibility and access 
• Signalized intersection at Puerta 

Real & Crown Valley Pkwy 
• Adjacent retail at Kaleidoscope 
• Strong household incomes 

 

• Occupied existing center • Potential revitalization / 
mixed-use development 
(e.g. hotel) with freeway 
exposure 

• Approx. 5.5 acres 
• Approx. 40,000 SF buildings 
• Owned by Lester C. Smull 
• Zoned Commercial Highway (CH) 

The Shops at 
Mission Viejo 

Kaleidoscope 
Courtyards 

Item
#20.              



Opportunity Site #10 
Shops at Mission Viejo 

72 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Regional retail shopping 

destination 
• I-5 Freeway visibility and access 
• Strong household incomes 

 
 

• Institutional owner • Mall expansion 

• Approx. 67 acres 
• Approx. 1,150,000 SF buildings 
• Owned by Shops at Mission Viejo LLC, 

Macys California Inc. 
• Zoned Commercial Regional (CR) 

Item
#20.              



Opportunity Site #11 
Renew Apartments – Marguerite Parkway 

73 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Access from I-5 Freeway 
• On-site residential and adjacent 

retail and educational uses 
• Strong household incomes 

 
 

• Residential relocation • Potential development of 
on-site retail component 

• Approx. 23.3 acres 
• Owned by South Orange County 

Community College District 
• Zoned Residential 30 (14-30 DU / 

AC) 

The Shops at 
Mission Viejo 

Saddleback 
College 

Item
#20.              



Opportunity Site #12 
Burlington Coat Factory – Marguerite Parkway 

74 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Access from I-5 Freeway 
• Signalized intersection at Avery 

Pkwy & Marguerite Pkwy 
• Strong household incomes 

 
 

• Long-term master lease, 
potential underutilization 

• Potential revitalization 

• Approx. 6.9 acres 
• Approx. 40,000 SF buildings 
• Owned by David L. Horowitz,  

Thomas Horowitz Trust 
• Zoned Commercial Highway (CH) 

Item
#20.              



Opportunity Site #13 
Estanciero Dr. & Marguerite Pkwy 

75 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Signalized intersection at 

Estanciero Dr. & Marguerite Pkwy 
• Nearby retail and restaurants 
• Strong household incomes 

 
 

• Small site footprint • Potential revitalization 

• Approx. 1.4 acres 
• Approx. 16,000 SF buildings 
• Owned by Nabil Karabetian 
• Zoned Commercial Community 

(CC) 

Item
#20.              



Summary of Findings 

76 

Item
#20.              



Summary of Findings 

77 

Demographics & Employment 
• Well-educated, affluent, relatively older population employed in white collar jobs 
• Low unemployment, with residents employed in Irvine, Los Angeles, Santa Ana, 

within Mission Viejo, and other cities 

Retail & Industry Retention & Recruitment 
• Low retail vacancy compared to South O.C. and total County averages 
• City experiencing minor overall leakage of retail sales, but performs above 

average relative to the County average in terms of retail sales per capita 
• Higher performing retail categories include grocery, electronics & appliances, 

and miscellaneous retail sales, while lower performing retail categories include 
apparel, restaurants and bars, and sporting goods 

Economic Development without Redevelopment 
• Dissolution of redevelopment agencies will continue to have a negative effect on 

most California Cities and impact to health of general fund 
• Alternative economic tools should be explored for Mission Viejo to retain and 

improve tax base and facilitate potential public-private transactions 

Item
#20.              



Questions / Comments 
 

Thank You 

78 

Item
#20.              



 


	AGENDA
	CLOSED SESSION
	REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION
	INVOCATION: Council Member Sachs
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Ury
	PRESENTATIONS
	P1. Recognize City Volunteers for Their 1,000 Hours of Service

	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	1. Waive Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions
	2. City Council Minutes
	[M161012.pdf]
	[Item 2_Schlicht.pdf]

	3. Check Register Dated September 30, 2016 in the Amount of $1,175,020.67
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Exhibit]

	4. Check Register Dated October 7, 2016 in the Amount of $1,748,603.08
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Exhibit]

	5. Check Register Dated October 14, 2016 in the Amount of $858,525.91
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Exhibit]

	6. City Treasurer’s Monthly Report for August 2016
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Exhibit]

	7. Mission Viejo Community Development Financing Authority (MVCDFA) Treasurer’s Monthly Report for August 2016
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Exhibits]

	8. Mission Viejo Housing Authority (MVHA) Treasurer’s Monthly Report for August 2016
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Exhibits]

	9. Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency Treasurer’s Monthly Report for August 2016

	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Exhibits]

	10. Road Closure Request from Trabuco Hills High School for a 5K Run
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Exhibit A [Conditions of Approval]]
	[Exhibit B [Map]]

	11. Renewal of Letter of Credit Related to Mission Viejo Community Development Financing Authority (MVCDFA) Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (Mission Viejo Mall Improvement Project), 1999 Series A
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[KNN Memorandum.pdf]
	[LOC Renewal Application.pdf]

	12. Ordinances to Ensure Prohibition of all Marijuana Uses in Light of the Potential Passage of Proposition 64
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[16-315]
	[16-316]


	ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	13. MV Shuttle-ADA Complementary Paratransit Plan
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Exhibit A [Coop Agreement-C-6-1292]]
	[Exhibit B [Paratransit Plan]]


	OLD BUSINESS
	14. Alicia Parkway Slope Renovation
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[10-25 WCA Amendment 17 - Exh A.docx]
	[10-25 Vandergeest Area 2 - Exh B.docx]
	[10-25 AC Landscape - Exh C.docx]
	[10-25 Alicia Parkway Slope Reso - Exh D .docx]
	[10-25 - Alicia Parkway Slopes - Exh E - map.pdf]


	MAYOR’S, COMMISSION, COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ACTIONS
	15. Foothill/Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency Report
	16. San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor Agency Report
	17. Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA)
	18. Update On CUSD Bond Measure Issue

	STAFF REPORTS
	COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS AND ACTIONS
	19. Council Member Reports of Events and Activities Attended
	[Agenda Report]
	[AB1234 Oct 25 2016.pdf]


	Council Member Raths
	Council Member Sachs
	Council Member Schlicht
	[Item 2_Schlicht.pdf]
	20. Civic Core Area Vision Plan Process:  Concerns as to Process and Scope of Land-Use Planning and Regulations	
	[councilcommentsRejectKosmontoct16 wpd.doc]
	[Kosmont Study.pdf]


	Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum
	Mayor Ury

